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From: Scearce, Lynn

To: gary.frost@gapac.com

Cc: ron.reynolds@gapac.com; ceron.heather@epa.gov; forney.kathleen@epa.gov; AlNahdy, Khalid; Read. David;
Arif, Syed; Friday, Barbara; Scearce, Lynn

Subject: 1070005-078-AC, Georgia Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC, Palatka Mill, Draft Permit

Date: Thursday, January 03, 2013 8:58:24 AM

Attachments: Draft 1070005-078-AC - Written Notice Sianed.pdf

Dear Mr. Frost:

Attached is the official Notice of Draft Permit for the project referenced below. Click on
the link displayed below to access the permit project documents and reply back
verifying receipt of the document(s) provided in the link.

Note: We must receive verification that you are able to access the documents. Your immediate reply will preclude
subsequent e-mail transmissions to verify accessibility of the document(s).

Owner/Company Name: GEORGIA-PACIFIC CONSUMER OPERATIONS LLC
Facility Name: PALATKA PULP and PAPER MILL

Project Number: 1070005-078-AC

Permit Status: DRAFT

Permit Activity: CONSTRUCTION

Facility County: PUTNAM

Click on the following link to access the permit project documents:

http://ARM-
PERMIT2K.dep.state.fl.us/adh/prod/pdf_permit_zip files/1070005.078.AC.D_pdf.zip

If you have any problems opening the documents or would like further information, please
contact the Florida Department of Environmental Protection, Office of Permitting and
Compliance.

Lynn Scearce

Office of Permitting and Compliance (OPC)
Division of Air Resource Management — DEP
2600 Blair Stone Road, Mail Stop 5505
Phone: 850-717-9025

Did you know that the Department may not require you to submit a Title V fee for the 2012 calendar year? To learn more,
please visit us online at the following web address: www.titleSfeeholiday.com
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Please take a few minutes to share your comments on the service you received from the department
by clicking on this link. DEP_Customer Survey.
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RICK SCOTT
FLoriDA DEPARTMENT OF GOVERNOR
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION JENNIFER CARROLL
BOB MARTINEZ CENTER LT. GOVERNOR

2600 BLAIR STONE ROAD
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32399-2400 HERSCHEL T. VINYARD JR.
SECRETARY

Sent by Electronic Mail — Received Receipt Requested

Gary L. Frost, Vice President Operations
Georgia Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC
Post Office Box 919

Palatka, Florida 32178-0919

Re: Project No. 1070005-078-AC
Georgia Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC, Palatka Mill
No. 4 Combination Boiler, Electrostatic Precipitator (ESP) Replacement

Dear Mr. Frost:

On December 19, 2012, you submitted a complete application requesting a permit revision to allow the
replacement of the No. 4 combination boiler ESP with the ESP previously used for the No. 5 power boiler at the
Palatka Mill. The Palatka Mill is an existing facility located in Putnam County at 215 County Road 216 in
Palatka, Florida. Enclosed are the following documents: the Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit; the
Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit; the Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination; and the
Draft Permit. The Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit is the actual notice that you must have published in
the legal advertisement section of a newspaper of general circulation in the area affected by this project. If you
have any questions, please contact the project engineer, David Read at 850/717-9075.

Sincerely,

Syed Arif
2013.01.03
07:48:38 -05'00'
for Jeffery F. Koerner, Program Administrator

Office of Permitting and Compliance
Division of Air Resource Management

Enclosures
JFK/ sa/dIr

www.dep.state.fl.us







WRITTEN NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT REVISION

In the Matter of an
Application for Air Permit by:

Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC Project No. 1070005-078-AC
Post Office Box 919 Minor Air Construction Permit Revision
Palatka, FL 32178-0919 Palatka Mill
No. 4 Combination Boiler

Authorized Representative: ESP Replacement
Gary L. Frost, Vice President Operations Putnam County, Florida

Facility Location: Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC operates the existing Palatka Mill, which
is located in Putnam County at 215 County Road 216 in Palatka, Florida.

Project: This project (Permit No. 1070005-078-AC) involves replacing the existing ESP used to control
particulate matter (PM) emissions from the No. 4 combination boiler with an ESP previously used to
control PM emission from the No. 5 power boiler. Details of the project are provided in the application
and the enclosed Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination.

Permitting Authority: Applications for air construction permits are subject to review in accordance with
the provisions of Chapter 403, Florida Statutes (F.S.) and Chapters 62-4, 62-210 and 62-212 of the
Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.). The proposed project is not exempt from air permitting
requirements and is a revision of the previously issued permit No. 1070005-066-AC required to perform
the proposed work. The Office of Permitting and Compliance is the Permitting Authority responsible for
making a permit determination for this project. The Permitting Authority’s mailing address is: 2600
Blair Stone Road, MS #5505, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400. The Permitting Authority’s telephone
number is 850/717-9000.

Project File: A complete project file is available for public inspection during the normal business hours
of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday (except legal holidays), at address indicated above for
the Permitting Authority. The complete project file includes the Draft Permit, the Technical Evaluation
and Preliminary Determination, the application, and the information submitted by the applicant, exclusive
of confidential records under Section 403.111, F.S. Interested persons may contact the Permitting
Authority’s project review engineer for additional information at the address or phone number listed
above.

Notice of Intent to Issue Permit: The Permitting Authority gives notice of its intent to issue an air
permit to the applicant for the project described above. The applicant has provided reasonable assurance
that operation of the proposed equipment will not adversely impact air quality and that the project will
comply with all appropriate provisions of Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-296 and 62-297,
F.A.C. The Permitting Authority will issue a Final Permit in accordance with the conditions of the
proposed Draft Permit unless a timely petition for an administrative hearing is filed under Sections
120.569 and 120.57, F.S. or unless public comment received in accordance with this notice results in a
different decision or a significant change of terms or conditions.

Public Notice: Pursuant to Section 403.815, F.S. and Rules 62-110.106 and 62-210.350, F.A.C., you (the
applicant) are required to publish at your own expense the enclosed Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air
Permit (Public Notice). The Public Notice shall be published one time only as soon as possible in the
legal advertisement section of a newspaper of general circulation in the area affected by this project. The
newspaper used must meet the requirements of Sections 50.011 and 50.031, F.S. in the county where the
activity is to take place. If you are uncertain that a newspaper meets these requirements, please contact
the Permitting Authority at above address or phone number. Pursuant to Rule 62-110.106(5) and (9),
F.A.C., the applicant shall provide proof of publication to the Permitting Authority at the above address
within 7 days of publication. Failure to publish the notice and provide proof of publication may result in
the denial of the permit pursuant to Rule 62-110.106(11), F.A.C.

Comments: The Permitting Authority will accept written comments concerning the proposed Draft

Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC Air Permit No. 1070005-078-AC
Palatka Mill, No. 4 Combination Boiler Electrostatic Precipitator Replacement
Page 1 of 3







WRITTEN NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT REVISION

Permit for a period of 14 days from the date of publication of the Public Notice. Written comments must
be received by the Permitting Authority by close of business (5:00 p.m.) on or before the end of the 14-
day period. If written comments received result in a significant change to the Draft Permit, the Permitting
Authority shall revise the Draft Permit and require, if applicable, another Public Notice. All comments
filed will be made available for public inspection.

Petitions: A person whose substantial interests are affected by the proposed permitting decision may
petition for an administrative hearing in accordance with Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S. The petition
must contain the information set forth below and must be filed with (received by) the Department’s
Agency Clerk in the Office of General Counsel of the Department of Environmental Protection, 3900
Commonwealth Boulevard, Mail Station #35, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000. Petitions filed by the
applicant or any of the parties listed below must be filed within 14 days of receipt of this Written Notice
of Intent to Issue Air Permit. Petitions filed by any persons other than those entitled to written notice
under Section 120.60(3), F.S., must be filed within 14 days of publication of the attached Public Notice or
within 14 days of receipt of this Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit, whichever occurs first.
Under Section 120.60(3), F.S., however, any person who asked the Permitting Authority for notice of
agency action may file a petition within 14 days of receipt of that notice, regardless of the date of
publication. A petitioner shall mail a copy of the petition to the applicant at the address indicated above,
at the time of filing. The failure of any person to file a petition within the appropriate time period shall
constitute a waiver of that person’s right to request an administrative determination (hearing) under
Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S., or to intervene in this proceeding and participate as a party to it. Any
subsequent intervention (in a proceeding initiated by another party) will be only at the approval of the
presiding officer upon the filing of a motion in compliance with Rule 28-106.205, F.A.C.

A petition that disputes the material facts on which the Permitting Authority’s action is based must
contain the following information: (a) The name and address of each agency affected and each agency’s
file or identification number, if known; (b) The name, address, and telephone number of the petitioner;
the name, address and telephone number of the petitioner’s representative, if any, which shall be the
address for service purposes during the course of the proceeding; and an explanation of how the
petitioner’s substantial interests will be affected by the agency determination; (c) A statement of when
and how each petitioner received notice of the agency action or proposed decision; (d) A statement of all
disputed issues of material fact. If there are none, the petition must so state; () A concise statement of
the ultimate facts alleged, including the specific facts the petitioner contends warrant reversal or
modification of the agency’s proposed action; (f) A statement of the specific rules or statutes the
petitioner contends require reversal or modification of the agency’s proposed action including an
explanation of how the alleged facts relate to the specific rules or statutes; and, (g) A statement of the
relief sought by the petitioner, stating precisely the action the petitioner wishes the agency to take with
respect to the agency’s proposed action. A petition that does not dispute the material facts upon which
the Permitting Authority’s action is based shall state that no such facts are in dispute and otherwise shall
contain the same information as set forth above, as required by Rule 28-106.301, F.A.C.

Because the administrative hearing process is designed to formulate final agency action, the filing of a
petition means that the Permitting Authority’s final action may be different from the position taken by it
in this Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit. Persons whose substantial interests will be affected
by any such final decision of the Permitting Authority on the application have the right to petition to
become a party to the proceeding, in accordance with the requirements set forth above.

Mediation: Mediation is not available in this proceeding.

Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC Air Permit No. 1070005-078-AC
Palatka Mill, No. 4 Combination Boiler Electrostatic Precipitator Replacement
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WRITTEN NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT REVISION

Executed in Tallahassee, Florida

Syed Arif
2013.01.03 07:49:17 -05'00'

for Jeffery F. Koerner, Program Administrator
Office of Permitting and Compliance
Division of Air Resource Management

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned duly designated deputy agency clerk hereby certifies that this Final Air Permit package
(including the Final Determination and Final Permit) was sent by electronic mail, or a link to these
documents made available electronically on a publicly accessible server, with received receipt requested
before the close of business on the date indicated below to the following persons.

Mr. Gary Frost, Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations LLC (gary.frost@gapac.com)

Mr. Ron Reynolds, Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations LLC (ron.reynolds@gapac.com)
Ms. Heather Ceron, US EPA Region 4 (ceron.heather@epa.gov)

Ms. Katy Forney, US EPA Region 4 (forney.kathleen@epamail.epa.gov)

Mr. Khalid AlNahdy, DEP Northeast District Office (khalid.alnahdy@dep.state.fl.us)

Ms. Barbara Friday, DEP OPC (barbara.friday@dep.state.fl.us)

Ms. Lynn Scearce, DEP OPC Reading File (lynn.scearce@dep.state.fl.us)

Clerk Stamp

FILING AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT FILED, on
this date, pursuant to Section 120.52(7), Florida Statutes,
with the designated agency clerk, receipt of which is
hereby acknowledged.

Lynn Scearce
2013.01.03 08:35:28 -05'00

Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC Air Permit No. 1070005-078-AC

Palatka Mill, No. 4 Combination Boiler Electrostatic Precipitator Replacement
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From: Linero, Alvaro

To: Read, David

Subject: FW: Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations LLC, Palatka Mill, Facility ID 1070005
Date: Monday, December 10, 2012 10:28:17 AM

Attachments: Research-Cottrell Manual sec |.pdf

-AC No. 5 PB ESP Addition of 3rd Field Final.pdf

David:
These details relate to the second piece of the G-P project.
l.e. they blank off some cyclones and also route exhaust to a different ESP.

A. A. Linero, P.E.

Florida Department of Environmental Protection
Office of Permitting and Compliance
850-717-9076

Did you know that the Department may not require you to submit a Title V fee for the 2012 calendar year? To learn more, please visit us
online at the following web address: wwuw title5feeholiday.com
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From: Reynolds, Ron E. [mailto:Ron.Reynolds@GAPAC.com]

Sent: Friday, December 07, 2012 12:40 PM

To: Linero, Alvaro; Arif, Syed; Pell, Leigh

Cc: Tingle, Scott D.; Ruppel, Mark S.; Eckenrode, Jim P.; Antoine, Melissa K.; Morris, Daniel L.; Francis, Keith T.
(PAL)

Subject: RE: Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations LLC, Palatka Mill, Facility ID 1070005

Below is information comparing the design of the #4 Combination Boiler precipitator and the #5 Power Boiler
precipitator (currently unused) that we are proposing to utilize for the #4 CB:

1) The two precipitator chambers are identical (size, structure, etc.)

2) The main difference between the two precipitators originally was that the Power Boiler inlet field
was empty; an inlet field was added to the PB unit in 2007 under permit 1070005-036-AC issued
October 11, 2006 (copy attached) .

3) Both Precipitators have (3) Fields, all of them have (21) collecting plates, (20) gas passages with
12" spacing

a. The collecting plates are 41’ high and 11’'2” wide.
4) Each field has (120) electrodes, (6) in each gas passage.
5) Each Precipitator has (49) Rappers
a. (12) collecting plate rappers per field
b. (3) discharge electrode rappers per field
c. (2)inlet and (2) outlet distribution plate rappers
6) The fields are individually energized by five (6) transformer/rectifier (T/R) sets (three per
Precipitator). Each T/R is connected full wave through a single output bushing. The
power supply is 480 volts, 60 Hz, 3 Phase.
a. T/R Set Ratings

Primary Primary
Secondary Secondary KVA
Volts Amps
Volts DC Amps DC
AC AC

480V 84 55 kV 500 mA 38.6
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Research- Ceﬂrell

AirPoliution Control Dlws:on

SECTION I+ INTRODUGT ION

1A

18

181

182

183

PURPOSE AND ‘CONTENTS. OF THIS: MANUAL
This manual contains both general and specific information for the safe
operation and maintenance of the precipitation equipment instalied at:

Georgia Pacific Company, Palatka, Florida.

Because the: equipment has been custom desigred, certain specific
adaustments and settings can on1y be wade during -operation, Information
régarding these adjustments will be supplied during startup by Research-
Cottrell field personnel who will also:

1. Perform a quality assurance inspection

2, Startup the equipment on: alr and gas 1oad

3. Adjust and set electrical -&qiuipment

4. Record data and

5. Train plant personnel in opevation and maintenance.

-DESCRIPTION. OF INSTALLATIQN

Plirpose

The electrostatic precipitation equipment on. this installation is
dESIQHEd to remove particulate from the gas stream of a. combination
bark and o1 fired boiler #4, Unit A, and, oil fired boiler #5, Unit B,

Seope

The equ1pment furnished by Research-Cottrel®T under this contract
consists of two (2} electrostatic precipitators with G-Opzel type
collecting plates, "Diratrode" rigid discharge electrodes each one
chiamber, 20 gas passages, support ihsulator seal air system, top
housing, and a screw conveyor ash handling systent.

Specifications

{a} Operating & Performance Data UNIT A UNIT B
= Gds Volume (Pitot), AGFM 230,000 230,000
- Gas Temperature, OF 4209F 425%F
- Temperature, Design 5500F 5500F
-~ Pressure, Design +3" W.C. +3" W.C,








Research-Cottrell

AirPollution Control Division’

INTROBUCTION - cont..

- Outlet Stopper Gr/SDCF

SECTION I:

- Quantity of Chambers/Pptr

- Quantity of Fields/Chamber
{b) Casing

- Material & Thickness

- Panthouse Material
and Thickness:

~ Quantity of Perforated
Plates/Pptr,

~ Location of Perforated
Plates Pptr,

= Quantity of Perforated
Plate Rappers/Pptr.

- Type of Access Doors
(e} CoTlectivg Systen

- Quantity of Gas Passages

=~ Spacing of Gas Passages

« Collecting Surface Material
and Thickness

UNIT A

UNIT B =
0.047 GRS/ACE  0.017 GRS/ACF:
1 1
3 2

3/16" Mild Steel, ASTM-36
ASTM=-AB70- 10 Ga. ASTM-A36.

Inlet Nozzle, Inlet Flange
and Outlet Flange

2

24" § Mild Steel

20
12"

Opzel 18 Ga. ASTH-A366








Research-Coftrell

 RirPoliation Control Division

18 DESCRIPTION OF INSTALLATION = cont.

iB3 ‘s'-p;'e:«:'i'ﬁ"ﬁca’éipn_s: - Gont,

- Quantity of Collecting
Surfaces

- Collecting Surface Effective
Length.

= Quantity Surface Effective
Height

~ Quantity Collecting
Electrode -Rappers

~ Type of Collecting Surfaces.
+ Hopper Material

{d} High Voltage System

UHT A wiT g

126 &4

1.2 1.2

60 (TOTAL BOTH UNITS)

G Opzel

174" Mild Steel, ASTH-A36

(1) Discharge Electrodes (Duratrode)

= Quantity
- Type
-« Material & Thickness
‘{2) Discharge Electrodé Rappers

- Quantity

= Type

600 Units A & B
Rigid scalloped vane "Duratrode”

18 Ga., ASTH-A366

15 Magnetic Impulse Gravity
Impact (MIGI} LV-1

20 Pound Plunger

(e) High Voltage 'Electrical Set ~ 500 MADC (FW)

(1} Transformer-Rectifier Controls are housed in the motor
control. centers. Three {3) in Unit A and two (2} in Unit B.

~ Quantity

5 Units A& B








Research-Coftrell
RirPollution Conrol. Divlsion

1B DESCRIPTION OF INSTALLATION ~ cont.
183 Specifications - cont.

(2) AC Linie Input

Voltage 430-480
Current 98.5
Phase 1
Fregtiency 60. Hz,
KVA at 480v 47.3

[ A

(3} Transformer-Rectifier

- Type Liguid: Diglectric
o HY. 011, Air Cooled

~ Quantity 5 Units A&B

= Maximan Ambient Temp. 50

{4} Transformer

~ Input: Voltage (V) 400 R’MS
- Qutpit Yoltage (Kv) 85 Kvp
= KVA 60,7

{5} Rectifier Output (Pure Resistive Load)

- Voltage (KV Avg.) 8%
~ Gurrent (MA- Avg.) 500
(f) Ventilation System
= Primary Fan Robinson

- R-C Standard Buctwork, )
Fan Baseé and Filtey Bax p

(1) Thermostat

- Type Bur¥ing
- Quantity 2 - Blast. Heaters
Ted
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\\  Departmentof
1\ Environmental Protection

Northeast District
Jeb Bush 7825 Baymieadows Way, Suite B-200 Colleen-Castille
Governor Jacksonville, Florida 32256-7530 Secretary

October 11, 2006

Mr. Keith Wahoske, Vice President
Palatka Operations:
Georgia-Pacific-Corporation

Post Office Box 919

Palatka, Florida 32178-0919

Re:  Putnam County — Air Permitting
Georgia-Pacific Corporation - Palatka Operations
No.:5 Power Boiler— ESP Addition of 3rd Field
AIRS ID No.. 1070005 Project No. 036

Dear M. Wahoske:

NOTICE OF PERMIT ISSUANCE

Enclosed.is Permit Number 1070005-036-AC to construct the subject:air pollution-emissions
unit(s), issted pursiant to Section 403.087, Florida Statutes (F.S.).

Any party to this order-has the rightto seek judicial review: of it under Section 120.68 F.8.; by
filing a notice of appeal under Rule 9.110 of the Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure with the
clerk: of the Department of Environmertal Protection in the Office of ‘General Counsel, Mail
Station 35, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida, 32399-3000,-and by filing a
copy -of the notice of appeal accompanied by the applicable: filing fees with the appropriate
district court-of appeal. The notice must be filed within thirty days after this order is-filed with the
clerk of the Department.

Executed in Jacksonville, Florida.

STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT
OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Christopher-L. Kirts, P. E.
District Air Program Administrater
CLK: RFS







Department of
Environmental Protection

Northeast District _ -
Jeb Bush 7825 Baymeadows Way, Suite B-200 collegni Castille
Governot Jacksonville, Florida 32266-7590 Secretary
PERMITTEE:
Georgia-Pacific Corporation 1.D: Number: 1070005
Post Office Box 919 Permit/Cert Number::  1070005-036-AC
Pataika, Florida 32178-0919 Date-of Issue: October 11,2006
Expiration Date: October 11,2007
County: Putnam
Latitude/Longitude:  29%40°50™ N; 81940°56™ W
UTM: E-(17y434:0, N-3283.4
Projeet: Wo. 5 Power Boiler, EIT#(H 5

"This-permit is issued under the provisions.-of Chapter(s) 403; Florida. Statites; and Florida Administrative Code
Rule(s) 62-210,:62-212, 62-296, 62-297 and 62-4. The above named permittee-is hereéby: auihorized fo perform the
waork or operate the facility shiown on the application and approved drawing(s), plans, and other documents attached
Thereto or on file with the department and. made a part hereof and specifically described as follows:

PROJECT

For the addition of athird field tothe existing two-field electrostatic precipitator (ESP) at the No. 5 Power Boiler.
The ESP is. de51gned to- control'the emissions of particulate matter from the bailer.

EACILITY DESCRIPTION

This facility is a Kraft pulp and paper mill that consists of major activities dreas such as; chip handling, pulping,
bleachmg, chemical recovery, utlhtnes paper machines, converting, turpentine-and-tall oil-production.

The No: 5 Power Boiler has a maximum steam production capacity of 475,000 pounds:per hour based on steam
conditions of 900° F at 1275 psi. The primary fuel isNo. 6 fiel oil. Particulate Matter emissions-are presently
controlled by -a single chamber, 2 field, Research Cottrell electrostatic precipitator. ‘Exhaust gases exit at
approximately 445 ¥ from.a 9* diameter stack that is 237" tall.

REGULATORY CLASSIFICATION
Thie No. 5 Power Boilet is regulated under Rule 62-296.404, F A C. - Keaft Pulp Mills; Rule 62-296.405, E.AC.,

Fossil Fuel Steam Generators with More than 250 Million Btu per hour Heat Input; Rule 62-210:700; and 40-CFR
63; Subpart S — Phase 1I as the boileris utilized as: the control device for TRS and HAP emissions from the Brown

Stack Washer System-and the Oxygen Delignification System.
OPERATING LOCATION

Located: North of County Road 216, West of U.S. Highway 17, Palatka, Putnam County, Florida.







PERMITTEE: e B

N _ LD Number;, 1970005

Georgia-Pacific Corporation Permit/Cert Numbei: 1070005-036-AC

Post Office Box 919 Date.of Issue: * Qctober 11,2006

Palatka, Florida 32178-0919 ‘Expiration Date: October 11,2007
‘County: Putnam

RELEVANT DOCUMENTS
The documentslisted below are the basis of the permit. They are specifically related to-this permitting dction.
These documents are oiv file with the Departnieiit: '

Application for Air Permit — Lorig Form received April 12, 2006
Additional Informatiosi Received July:3, 2006

Additional Information/Comnients Received August 4, 2006
Comments from Applicant-received September 27, 2006







PERMITTEE:

1.D. NUmber ]07001}5
Georgia-Pacific Corporation Permit/Cert Nuribéi; 1070005-036-AC
Post:Office Box-919 Date of Issue: ¥ Dctober 11,2006
Palatka, Florida 321780919 ‘Expiration Pate: QOctober 11,2007
‘County: Putnam

GENERAL CONDITIONS:

1. Théteims, conditions, requirerents, Hmitations, and resfrictions set Torth in.this permit are "Pérmit
Conditions" and are binding-arid enforceable purswant t¢ Sections 403.161, 403:727, or 403.859 thiough 403.861,
Florida Statutes, Thie permittee is-placed on notice that the Department will review this permit periodioally and
may initiate enforcement action for-any-violation of the conditions.

2. This permit is-valid only for the specific processes and operations applied for and indicated in the approved
drawings or-exhibits. Any unauthorized deviation from the approved drawings, exhibits, specifications, or
conditions of this permit may constitute grounds for revocation-and enforcement.action by the Department.

3. As provided. in Subsections 403.087(6) and 403.722(5), Florida Statutes, theissuance of this permit does.not
“convey arfy vested rights orany exclusive privileges. Neither-does: it duthorize any injury to public or private
:property or-any invasion of pefsonal rights, norany infringement of federal, state or local laws or regulatlons “This
‘permit is not a waiver of or-approval of any other Departmert permit that may be required for other aspects of the
‘total project which are not'addressed in the permit.

4. This permit conveys no title to land or water, does not constitute State recognition or-acknowledgment of
title, and doesnot constitute authorify for the use of submerged lands unless herein‘provided and the necessary-title
‘or leasehold interests-have been obtained from the State.. Only the Trustees of the Internal Improvement - Trust.
‘Fund:may express State-opinion-as to title.. '

5. This permif does not relieve the permitte¢ from liability for harm or injury to human health orwelfare,
‘animal, or plant lifé or propetty caused by thié construction or operation of this pérmitted sourcs, or from penalties
therefore; nor does it allow the permitted to cause pollution in contravention of Florida Statutes and Departmerit
‘rules, unless specifically authorized by an order from the Departrent;

‘6. The permitteeshall properly operate and maintain the facility and systems.of treatment and control (and
related appurtenances) that are installed.and used by the permittee to achieve:compliance with-the conditions of
this permit, as.required by Department rules. This provision includes the operation of backup or auxiliary facilities
or similar systems when necessary. o achieve cempliance with the conditions of the-permit-and when required by
Depattnient rules,

7. The perinitiée, by accepting this perniit, specifically-agrees to-allow authorized Department personngel, upon
presentation of credentials or other documents'as may be required by law and at a reasonable time, access to the:
prémises, where the permitted -activity is:located or conducted to:

a, Haveaccess to and copy any record that must-be kept under the conditions of the permit;

b. Inspectthe facility, equipment, practices,-or operations.regulated or required under this permit; and.

©.. ‘Sample or monitor:any substances or paramefers at any location reasonably necessary to.assure
.compliance with this permit-or-Department rules.

Reasonable time inay depend on the nature of the concern being investigated,







PERMITTEL:

) LD Number: 1070005
Georgia-Pacific Corporatin Permit/Cert Number:  1070005-036-AC
Post Office Box 919 Date-of Tssue; * October I1, 2006
Palatka, Florida. 32178:0919 Expiration Date: October 11,2007

Couity: Putnamn

GENERAL CONDITIONS:

8. If, for-any reason, the permittee does not.comply with or will be unable fo:comply-with any condition or
limitation specified in this permit, the permiittee shall immediately provide the Department with,thé"fb!ldwing
information; '

4. adescription ofand cause of non-compliance;-and

b. the period of non-compliance; including dates:and times; or, if not corrected, the anticipated time
the non-compliance is expected {o continue, and steps being taken-to reduce; eliminate, and prevent
recurrence of the non-compliance,

The permitiee shall be:responsible for any-and all damages, which may result-and may: be subject fo
‘enforcement action by the Department for penalties or for revocation of this permit.

9. In.aceepting this permit, the permittee understands and agreés that all records, notes, monitoring data.and
‘other information relating to. the construction. or operation of this' peimitted source which are: submitted to the
.'Department may be-used by the Departiiient as evidence in-any enforcement ¢asé involving the: permitted source
arising under the Florida Statutesor Department-rules, except where such use is-prescribed by Sections 403.73 and
‘403,111, Florida Statutes. Such-evidence shall only be-used to-the extent itis consistent with the Florida Rules of
‘Civil Piocedure and appropriate-evidentiary rules.

10. The permittee agrees to comply with changes in Department rules and Florida Statutes: after a reasonable.time
for compliance, provided, however; the permittee does-not waive any other rights-granted by Florida Statutes.or
Departaient ruies:

11 “This permit is transferable only upon Departient approval in accordance with Florida Adminfstrative Code
Rules 62-4.120 and 62-730.300, F.A.C., as ap_pi_{_cal__)_ie The permittee shall be liable for any ion-compliance of the
permitted activity until the transfer is. approved by. the Départent:

2. This permitor a.copy thereof shall be kept:at the-work site-of the permitted activity.
13, "This permit also constitutes:

( ) Detetmination.of-Best- Available Control Technology (BACT)

{ ) Determination:of Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD)

( ) Complianice with New: Souirce Performance Standards (NSPS)

{ ) Compliance with National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants/ Maximum Available
‘Control Technology-(MACT):







PERMITTEE:

1.D. Nunibér: 1070005
Georgia=Pacific Corporation Permit/Cert Number; 1070005:036-AC
Post Office Box 919 Date of Tssue: £ October 11, 2008
Palatka, Florida 32178-09.19 Expiration Date: October: 11,.2007
County: Putnam

GENERAL CONDITIONS:

a. Upon request, the permittee shall-furnish all records and plans required under Depariiesnt iuiles. During
enforcement actions, the retention period for all records will be extended automatically unless atherwise
stipuilated by the Department,

b.  The:permittee shall hold at the facility or other focation designated by:this permit records of all-monitoring;
information (including all calibration and maintenance records and all original strip chart recordings Tor
continuous monitoring instrumentation) required by the permit, copies of all reports required by this-
permit, and records of all.data used to-complete the application Tor this permif. These materials shall be
retained at least three years fromthe date of the sample, measurement, report; or application-unless
othérwise specified by Department fitle. ' ' "

¢. Records of monitoring information shall include:

- ‘thie date, exact place, and time 6f sampling or measurements;.

- the person-responsible for performing the-sampling or measurement;
= thedates analyses-were performed;

“« the person responsible for performing the analyses;

-~ the analytical techniques-or methods-used; and:

the results of'such analyses, '

15 “When requested by the:Department, the permittee shall withii a reasonable time furnish-any information

leqmrcd by-law, which is néeded to determine complxam:e with the permit. If the permittee bécomes aware that
relevant facts were not submitted or were incorrect in the permit application 6t in #ny report fo the Department,
such facts or mfbrmatlon shall be corrected promptly







PERMITTEE:

1.D. Number: 1070005
Georgia-Pacific Corporation Permif/Ceirt Nomber:  1070005-036-AC
Post Office Box 919 Date o Tssié: " Dctober 11, 20086
Palatk4, Florida 32178-0919 Expiration Date: Qctober 11,2007
County: Putnam

The following specific conditions.apply to the emissions unit(s).listed below::

E.U. 1D

Neo. Brief Description

0I5 #5 Power Boilerwith an electrostatic precipitator to control particulate matter émissions.
A0 This permit authorizes the modification of the existing single chamber; two field, Research Cottrell

clectrostatic precipitator by the addition of a third field. The new third field (TR—IZ} shall be the first field
in the:chamber and of the same design as the.two existing fields (TR’s 22.and 32).

Each-field®s internals:includes 21 collecting plates, a collecting surface length of 22.4.ft, a.collecting area of
18,386 sq-ft, and 120 discharge electrodes.

The electrostatic precipitator has an inlet flow-of 230,000 acfifi, 445° F, and an inlet loading of 0.04 grains
per-dry standard ctibic foot ofair flow®.

The madification does not authorize changes to the-existing ductwork, faits, or the inlet flow rate to the ESP.

" The design.inlet loading as stated in the 7/3/06 Response,

Operational Parameters

AT,

A2,

'ESP.Operation. The No, 5 Power Boiler ESP (Research Cottrelly:shall only be used-as the Particulate
‘Matter control device for the No. 5 Power Boiler, This constriiction permit-does tiot authorize the-utilization

of this ESP as 2 “polishing unit™ or as additional. Paiticulate Matter control for the No.4 Combination.
Boiler'.

"'The utilization of this ESP in this-manner may require-PSD-Review or amodification/revision-to:the:
pending BACT analysis and Defermination-for'the No..4 Combination Boiler project being processed by-
-DARM. ' '

[Rule 62-4.070, F.AC.]

‘Pérmitted Capacity, The maxinmum heat input rate is 5689 MMBtu/hr.

[Rules 62-4.160(2) and 62-210.200(PTE), F.A.C.; Constriction Permit No, 1070005-028-AC]







PERMITTEE:

A3 Ay

ABb

A,

1.1, Number: 1070005
‘Georgia-Pacific Corporation Permit/Cert Number: 1070005-036-AC"
‘Post Office Box 919 Date:of Tssue: * Otebier ] 1, 2006
‘Palatka, Florida 32178-0919 Expiration Date: October 11,2007
County: Putiiam

Methods: of Operation. This boilet may be fired with:

s No.6 fuel 6il with a'sulfur contentthat shall not exceed 2.35%, by weight, and.on-spec used oil.
+  Natural gas.asastartup fuel.
Diliite fion-condensable gases (DNCGS) during periods when the boiler is being atilized for their
destruction.

[Rule 62-213; 410, F.A:C:; Construction Permiit No: 1070005-017-AC; Construction Permit Mo. 1070005-
024-AC;-Construciion Permlt No, 1070005-025-AC; PCP Exelusion dated March 14,2002]

Methods:of Operation. Excépt for mfrequent periods:of. m'lmt'enance all figlds of'the ESP shall be

Functioning when the No. 5 Power Boiler is‘in opelatlon Operation ot the ESP shall meet the operating
requiremenits of the established CAM plan.

I"The Permitiee is authorized to-operate two Tields lor the pirposes-of the c.o'mp]ianco. testing of the
operational scenario requited in Condition A.8:a. '

[Rufe 62-4.070, F.AC]

‘Hours of Operation. The hours of-operation are not limited.

[Rules 62-4.160(2) and 62-210.200(PTE), F.A.C.]

Emission Limits and Standards

{Permitting Note: Unless otherwise specified, the dverdaging times for these conditions are based on the specified
averaging time of the applicable.test method,}

AS.a.

ASb.

Particulate Matter Emissions- Steady State. The Permittee shafl operate and maintain an electrostatic
‘precipitator (ESP) to-control particulate matter emissions. . Paticulate Matter Emissions. shall not exceed
0.11b/MMBTU heat input. [Equivalent emissions-are: 5689 lbs/hr and 218.0 TPY]

[Rule 62-296.405(1)(b}; F.A.C.; Construction Permit No. 1070005-024-AC]

Partloulate Matier Ermss:orss Soot B]owma & Load Change The Permlttee shall operate and mamtam an:

oxoof:d An-average of 03 lb/MMBTU heat mput (Equwaient Em;ssmns dre: 170 67 ]bs/hr and 93.4 TPY), whlle
soot blowing or during # load change. Theseexcess emissions. resultmu_fmm_ operation in eithier of these two
‘modes shall tiot exceed 3 hours in any 24-hour period, Bestopeiational practices to minimize emissions:shall be
adhered to-dnd the duration of excess-emissions shall be minimized.

A load change ocours when the operational capucity-of aunit is in the 10 pereent to 100 percent capaciiy-range,
‘other than staring-or shtdovn, which exceeds 10 percent of the unit s rated capacily:and which occurs.ata rate
of {):5 percent per miitute-or More..

[Rule 62-210.700(3), F:A.C.; Consiruction Permit No. 1070005-024-AC;]







PERMITTEE:

Abid

Aéb.

ATa

ATb. .

AB.

1.0 Number: 10700035
“Georgia-Pacific Corporation Permit/Cert Number:  1070005-036-AC
Post Office Box 919 Didté of Issuer ‘' ‘October 11,2008
[Palatka, Florida 32178-0919 Expirdtioh Dateé; Qcteber 11,2007
County: Puthiam;

Visible Emissions- Steady State, Visible emissions shall not exceed 20% opacity except forup to 40% for2
minutesthr.,

[Rule 63-296.405(1(a}, F.AC.]

Visible Emissions - Soot Blowing & Load Change. Visible emissions shall notexceed 60% opacity while soot
blowing or during a load change.. These excess emissions resulting from operation in either of these two-modes
shall notexceed 3 hours-in.any 24-hour period. Best-operational practices fo minimize:emissions shall be
adhered to and the duration of excess emissions shall be.minimized..

A load change occurs when-the operational capacity of a.unit is inthe [0 percent to 100 pérceni capacity range
other than startup or shutdown, which excedds 1) perceni.of the ynit’s raled capacity and which océurs at- a rate
of 05 pe_rce_ht. per MIne OF more,

[Rule 62-210.700(3); E.ACT

Sulfur Dioxide Emissions, Sulfur Dioxide emissions shall be limited to a-maximum sulfur content 0f 2,35
%, by weight, in the-fuel oil, 1544.3 Ibs/hr and 6638.5 TPY.'

! Includes SO; emissions due to-dilute NCG (DNCG) burning of 82.6 Tbs/hr-and 2363 TPY.?

? The yearly allowable limitation of 236.3 TPY s applicable to either the Wo. 5 Power Boiléror the No. 4
Combination Boiler, or the No. 5'Power Boiler and the No. 4 Combinaticn Boiler combiried for a total of
236.3-TPY.

[Rule 62-296.405( 1)(c)1.j, F.A.C. subsumed; Constriction Permit No. 107005-017-AC; Construction
Permit No.. 1070005-024-AC; Construction Permit No. 1070005-025-AC; PCP Exclusion dated April 23,
2004

Sulfur Dioxide Emissions.— DNCG. “The burning of DNCGs shall-cease when-the sum of the SOZ

‘emissions reaches the yearly, allowable Jimitation of 236.3 tons.! When firing DNCGs, 805 emissions shall

be determined as.stated in Specific: Condition No. A.10:

! Theyearly allowable limitation of 236.3 TPY is-applicable o either the No. 5 Power Boiler or the No. 4
Combination Boiler;.or the No..5 Power Boiler-and the No. 4 Combination Boiler combined for aiotal of
236.3 TPY.

[PCP Exclusion:-dated April 23, 2004]

Totil Reduced Sulfur (TRSY Emissions: When the No..5 Power Boiler is used to burn DNCGs, TRS
emissions.shall not exceed 3. ppm by volumic on a.dry basis atstandard conditions corrected to 10 percent
:oxygen as a-12-hour.average: and 3.9 lbs/hrand 17.1 TPY.

[Rule 62-296404(3)(D1., F:A.C.; Construction Permit No. 1070005-024-AC)







PERMITTEE:

[.I); Number; 1070003
‘Georgia:Pacific Corpotation ‘Permit/Cert Number;  1070005-036-AC
‘Post.Office Box 919 ‘Daté of Issue: ‘Cetober-11, 2006
Palatka, Florida 321780919 “Bxpiration Date: Qetober11, 2007
‘County: Putnam

Jest Methods and Proceédiires

A:9:a.. Particuldte Matter Emissions — Steady State. Particulate Matter testing shail comply with the: apphcable

Adb.

requirements in-Rulé 62-296.405(1)(e)2., F.A.C., (EPA Methods 1 through 3, incorporated and adopted by
reference in. Chapter 62:297, F.AC): An initial compliance test for the purposés of this construction
per |_'nn:i 2 shall be performed as described below-and then once each federal fiscal-year per Rule 62-

297:310(7)@)4., FAL.

The facility shall conduct a Particufate Matter compliance test (consisting of three, one-hour runs), under the

following operational scenario:

ESP Fields | Power (Watts)
TRTR, BV, PV,

“The following information shall also be obtained during the tests:

1) ‘Secondary voltage, secondary current réading per TR set of eachi field
i) "The spark rate
“Hi) Gas temperatiire {inlet and dutlet)

vy ‘Rapper-frequency

*For the purposes of this construgtion permitonly, if the results of thie particulate matter compliance test
conducted wliile the emissions unit'is operating under soot blowing conditions demonstrates compilance
with the PM emissions limiting standard in Specific Condition No. A.5.7, the.facility may submit.a-waiver
‘requesi.io the Air-Compliance section of this Office for the particulate matter compliance test required by
‘Specific Condition A.9.a. ‘Otherwise, the facility shall conduct the PM testing as requifed by this Spegific
Condition.

'GP shall continug to deinonstrate compliance with the requirements of the FINAL Title V Permit No.
1070005-034-AV on the testing frequency required by that permit. This mltaa[ comphance testisto
demonstrate compliance with the ternis of this constriction perinit: affer construction is complete of the: 31

fieldof the ESP.

[Rule 62-296.405(1)(e)2., F.A.C.; Construction Permit No. 1070005-024-AC; Construction PermitNo:
1670005-025-AC; FINAL “Title V Operation Permit Ne. 1070005-034-AV]

Particulate Matter Emissions—Soot Blowin: _.' . Particulate Matter-testing shall:.comply with the applicable
requirements in Rule 62-296.405(1)(e)2., F.A:C., (EPA Method 5, incorporated and adopted by reference in
‘Chapter 62-297, F.A.C.),

Ari'initial complisnce test for the purposes.of this cons_tru_c'ti_'on_'p_ermi_f._s'_ha_l_l be performed as described
below and then once each federal fiscal year per Riile:62-297.310(7){a)4.. F.AC.

The facility ‘shall conduct a Particulate Matter compliance test (consisting of three, one-hour.runs), under
eacluof the following eperational scenario:







PERMITTEE:

A.-.I.Ov"a

A.10:b.

- LD Number: 1070005
‘Georgia-Pacific Corporition Permit/Cert Numiber: 1070003-036-AC
Post:Office Box 919 -Date of Tssue: " October 11, 2006
‘Palatka, Florida 32178-0919 Expiration Date: October 1.1, 2007
County: Putnam
ESP Fields | Power (Watts)
TRy, TRy { PV, + PVg

“The following information shall also be obtained during the tests:

i Secondary voltage, secondary current reading per TR set.of each field
i) The spark rate '

i} Gas temperaturé {inlet-and otitlet)

iv) Rapper frequency”

"For excess emission limitations for particulate matter specil ted in Rile 62-210: 700, F.AC. s (Condition
A.5b, ) a comphance test shiall be condueted annually witile the emissions unit is operatmg uiider.soot
blowing conditions in each federal fiscal year durmg which-soot blowing is part. 0T normal:emissions unit
operation, except that such test shall not-berequired in any féderal fiscal year in which a fossil fuel steam
-generator does not burn liquid fuel for more than-400. hours otherthan-during startup..

2 GP shall-.continue to-demonstrate compliance with the requirements-of the FINAL Title V Pérmit No.
1070005-034-AV on'the testing frequency required by that permit. This initial compliance test is-io
demorstrate compliance with the terms. of this-construction permit after construction is complete of the 3

field-of the ESP.

TRule 62-296.405(1){e)2., F.A.C.; Rule 62-210.700(3), F.A.C; Rule 62-297. 310(7)(a)2., FAC;
‘Construction Permit No: 1070005 024-AC; Construction Permit No. 1070005-025-AC- 8.C. 20; FINAL
Title V. Operation Permit No. 1070005-034-AV]

Visible Emissions - Steady State. The Visible Emissions test method shall be DEP Method 9, incorporated

in Chapter 62-297, F.A.C.!

'GP shall continue to demonstrate compliance with the requirements of the. FINAL Title.V Permit No.
1070005-034-AV on the testing frequency fequired by that pérmit.

TRules 62296, 405(1)(3)1 ‘and 62:297.401(9), F.A.C.; Coustruction Permit No. 1070005-024-AC;.
Construction Permit No: 1070005 025-AC; FINAL Title V Operation-Permit No. 1070005-034-AV]

Visible Emissions —._Sbot Blowing: &'L_oad ‘Change. The Visible Emissions test method shall be DEP
Method 9, incorporated in Chapter-62-297, FAC. '

LGP shall continue to demons’trate-complian'ca with the requirements of thie FINAL Title V' Peimit No,
1070005-034-AV on the testitig frequency réquir_éd'by that permit.

{Rulé 62-297.401(9), F:A.C.; Rule 62-210.700(3), F.A.C.; Construction Permit No: 1070005-024-AC;

Construction Permit No, 1070005-025-AC ~ S.C. 14,23; FINAL Title V Operation Permit No.1070005-
034-AV]







PERMITTEE:

1.D. Nunibei: 1070005
Georgia-Pacific Corporation Permit/Cert Number; 1070005-036-AC
Post Office Box 919 Date-of Issue: " October 11, 2006
Palatka, Florida 321780919 :Expiration Date: Qctober 11, 2007
‘Coupty: Putnar

AL Sulfur Dioxide Emissions. T Tieu of stack testifig; $O» emissions due to the burning of fuel oil shalf be
determined as follows:

(%8 0il/100) x 8.2 Ios/gal x Tb mole §/32 Ibs S Ibmole $O3/lb mole'S x 64 Tbs SOAb miole
$03=1(0.164 x %8} Ibs*SO,/gal

{0.164 x %8} 1bs SO:/gal x gallons of fuel oil fired = 1bs'S0O,

For purposes of this condition, daily SO, emissions from the #5 PB dueto burning of DNCGs will be
.determined-as follows:

(Daily production in Tons ADUP x035 1bs-S /ion ADUP x2 Ibs S§O,/116-8) x Minutes DNCG's burned in
#5PB/1440 mitiutes/day = lbs 80,/ day from #5PB

A record shall be maintained for at least five years of the. following:

The date, time, and duration DNCGs are fired in the boiler,"

‘The:sulfur contetit' of the fuel oil fired (based upori a three barge rolling average),
Thie amount (gallons) of fuel oil fired,

‘The certified on-specification used oil analysis {when on-spec used-oil is:fired).

“The mill shall.obtain thisinformation from the plant data information system or the Operators’ DNGC
Diversion log as backup to the plant-data information.system.

The yearly allowable timitation of 236.3 TPY is applicable to either the No, 5 Power Boiler or the No. 4
Combination Boiler, or-the No, 5 Power Boiler and the No, 4 Combination Boiler combined fora tétal of
236.3 TPY.

A SO, emissions teport of the above data shall be _sgbmittfzd.td the Contpliance Section of the Northeast
District Office onan-annual basis (by April. | forthe previous year):

[Rirles 62-296.405(1)(H1.b:and Rule:62-296:405(1)(e)3., F.A.C:; PCP Exclusion dated April 23,2004
Construction Permit No. 1070005-024<AC]

‘A.f2. TRS Emissions.. It is assumed that complianee with the TRS emissions limit stated in‘Condition No. A.§is
achieved by maintaining the minimum temperature.of 1200 F and the-0.5:second residence time.

[40 CFR 60:283(a)(1)(iii); Construiction Permit No. 1070005-024~AC]
A.13. TRS Emissiong. When routing TRS gases 10 this boiler for therial destruiction, the gases shall be-
introduced with the primary-fuglor into the flamé zone, or-with the combustion aif. The TRS gases shall be

subjeet to-a minintunt temperature of 12007 F for-at least 0.5 sécond..

[Rules 62:296.404(3)(a) 1. and:62-296.404(5)(d), F-A.C.; 40 CFR 60.283()(1)(iii); Construction Permit No.
1070005-024-AC;]







PERMITTEE:
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A14. Complisice Test Procedutes. Test procedures shall meet all-applicable requirements of Chapter62-297,
F.ALC,

[Rule 62-296:414(3)(b);F.A.C.]

A5, Compliance Test Notification.. At least I'5-days prior thedate on whicl each formal compliance test is due
to begin, the permitteg shall provide written notification of the test to the Air Compliance Section of this
‘Office. “The notification must include the following information: the: dafe, time,-and location of each test;
thename and telephene number.of the facility’s contact person who will be resporisible for coofdinating the
test; and the name, company-and telephione number of the person conducting the test:

[Rule 62:297.310(7(@)9., F.A.C]]

A:l6; Test Reports. Reporis:of the required compliance tests shall be filed with the Air Compliance Section-of
this Office as soon asipractical but no Jater than 45 days after the fast test is:completed.

[Rule 62-297.3T0{(8)(b), F.A.C.]

A:17. Operation During Compliance Test. Unless-otherwise stited in the applicable emission limiting standard
rule, ‘testing of 'emissions shall be condiicted with the emissions unit operation at permitted capacity as
defined in Specific Condition A.2, Ifitis 1mpract1cable to test at periitted capacity; an emissions Atk may
be tested af less than the minifium permltted capacity; in this case, subsequent émissions unit-operation:is
Timited t6 110 percent of the:test load until-a new testis conducted. Ongce the unit is so limited, operation at
higher capacities is allowed for no more. than 5 consecittive days for the purpose of: additional compliance
testing:to regain the authotity to-operate atthe permitted capacity: Permitted capacity-is-defined-as-90 to
100 percent.of the maximum operation-rate allowed by the permit.

[Rule 62-207.310(2)(b), F.A.C.]

A8, Stack. sanipling: facilities shall comply with the. requirements. of Rule 62~

297.310(6), FAC.

A.19. Special Compliance Tests. ‘When the Department, after mvestigation, hag good reason (such as.complaints,
increased visible emissions or questionable maintenance of control equipment) to believe that any applicable
emission standard contained in a Departmentrule:or in a permitissued pursuant to-those rules is being.
violated, it shall require the owner or operator of the emissions unit fo-conduct compliance tests which
identify the nature and quantity of pollutant.emissions from the emissions unit and'to provide a.report on the
results of said tests-to the Department.

[Rule 62:297 310¢7)(b), F.A.C:]

;I'n'i'fial Compliance Test Frequency.

A.20. The permittee shall coridict an fhitial formal compliance test:as stated in Specific Condition No, A.9:a.,
within 60 days aftet the addition of the third field in the ESP.

[Rule 62-297.310(7)(@)1., F.A.C.]
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'Sub's".eque_nt Compliance Test Frequency

A.21. Reguitements for Annual Testing. The owrieror operator shall meet all applicable requirenients of Rufe 62-
297.310(4), F.A.C;

TRule 62-297.310(4), F.A.C

‘Equipment Requirements

A.22, Required Equipment. The owner or operator of an-emissions unit for which compliance tests are required
shall install, operate, and maintain equipmerit or instruments necessary to defermine process variables, such
as process Weight input:orheat input, when' such-data are needed 1 conjunction with emisdions-data to
déetermine the compliance of the enissions unit with:applicable eimission limiting standards.

[Rule 62-207.310(5)(a), F-A.C.]

A23, Accuracy of Equipment: Equipment or instraments used to directly or indirectly determine process variables;
including devices such as belt scales, weight hoppers, flow.meters, and tank scales; shall be calibrated and
adjusted to indicate the true value of the parameter be'ing:measured-wi_'th.sufﬁcient-accuracy to-allow the
applicable process variable fo be determined within: 10% of its-true value.

[Rule 62-297.310(3)(B), F:A:C.]

#A.24, Control Equipment. Condrol eqaipnient ‘shall be provided with a method of dccess thatis safe-and readily
accessible.

[Rule 62-297.310(6), FAC.]

‘A25, Circumveition of Control Devices. No person shall circumventany air pollution control device, orallow the
emissions of air pollutants-without the.applicable air pollution control device operating properly:

[Rule 62-210.650, F.A )
Excess Emissions

{Permitting Nole: The Excess-Eniissions Rude ol Rule 62-210.700;, F.A.C., cannol vary any requirement of a
NSPS or NESHAP provision.}

A.26.Excess emissions resulting from malfunction of any emissions uniit shall be permitted providing (1) best:
operational practices to minimize emissions are adhered to-and (2)-the duration of excess emissions shall be:
‘minimized but in no-case exceed two hours in any 24 hour period unless specifically authorized by the
Department for longer duration.

TRule 62:210.700(1), F.A.C.]

A27. ‘Excess Emissions due fo-startup-and shuidown are conditionally allowed for 1p to 8 hours/in any24-hiour
‘peériod unless specifically authbrized'.by 1lis De_part_m'ent_.fﬁr“longe‘r duration.,

[FINAL Title V Permnit No.. 1070005-034-AV]







‘PERMITTEE:

A28,

_ 1.D. Nuimber: 1070005
Georgia-Pacific Corporation Permit/Cert Nummber: 1070005-036-AC
‘Post Office Box 919 Date of Issue: Qctober 11,2006
‘Palatka, Florida32178-0919 Expiration Date: October-11,.2007
County: Putnam

Excess Emissions-which are cause entirely or in-part by pooimaintenance, poor operation, orany other
eqiipment or process failure which may reasonably be preventéd diring startup, shutdown, ot malfunction

shall be prohibited,

[Rule 62-210.700(4); F.A.C.]

Recordkeeping and Reporting Requirements

A29.

A.30.

AL,

A33.

-Commencement of Operation: The permittee shall submit to the Ait Compliance section of'this Office

written notification of the date of commencement of operation of the electrostatie precipitator as modified.
This notification shall be submitied or postmarked-with:as many days prior to-the date of operation.

-commencement-as-practical,-but no later than one (1) business-day following commencement:of operation.

[Rule-62:4.070, F.A:C.]

The permittee shall submit.an Operation and Maintenance Plan for the electrostatic-precipitator. The O&M

‘plan may bé subinitted with the Title V' Air Operation Permit Revision appllcatlon

[Rule 62:4.070, F.A.C.]

‘The permittee shall submit the final design.imformation. of the third field and"the expected performance
‘criteria. “This information:may be submitted with the Test-Report-required by Specific-Condition No. A.16.

[Rule 62:4.070, F.AC]

Annual -Operating; Report. Pérmitieé shall submit an aninal operation report to the Départment for this

etission unit(s) ontlie form(s) supplied for each calendar year on-or befors March 1

[Rule 62-210.370(3); FAC]

Excess Emissions— Malfunctions. In case of excess emissions resulting from malfunctions, the owner or
operator shall notify the Department in accordance with Rule 62-4.130, F:A.C. A full written report on the-
malfunctions shall be submitted in-a quarterly report, if requested by-the Department.

IRule 62-210.700(6), F.A.C.]

Used Oil Reguirements.

A4,

This emissions.unit is also subject to the On-Spee: Used Oil requirements specified in.Subsection S.of
FINAL Title V- Operation Pérmit No. 1070005-034-AV.

-Perivdic Monitofing

A35:

This emissions unit is also subject to applicable Periodic: Monitoring Requirements specified in Subsection
W of FINAL Title V Operation Permit No., 1070005-034-A V.







PERMITTEE:

1D, Nurber: 10700605
“Georgia-Pacific-Corporation Permit/Cert Number:  1070005-036-AC
"Post Office Box 919 Date of [ssue: © Qotober 11,2006
‘Palatka, Florida’32178-0919 Expiration, Dite: Qctober 11, 2007
Cotinty: Puatnani

‘Conmpliance Assurance Monitoring

-A.36, This emissions unit is also subject to Compliatice ‘Assurance Monitoring as required by 40 CFR Part 64.

[40 CFR 64 and, Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C)







PERMITTEE:

LD Number: 1070005
Georgia-Pacific Corporation Permit/Cert Number:  1070005-036-AC
Post'Office Box 919 Prate:of Tssite: © Qctober 11, 2006
Palatka, Florida 32178-0919 Expiration Date: Oetober-i1, 2007
County: Putnam

-Subsection B. This section-addresses the following emissions units.

Common:Conditions::

E.U. ID,
No. Brief Description _ _
Q15 #5 Power Boilsr with an electrostatic: precipitator to contro] partieulate matter emissions.

‘B.l.  The'ID Nuniber.and Project Name for this source shall be used on all cortespondences.

‘B2 Definitions. Rules 62-210.200{159),(230)-and (245), F.A.C. define the following terms,

a.  Starfupis defined as-the commencement of operation of any-emissions unit which
has shut down or ceased operation fora period of time sufficient to-cause
femperature, pressure, <chemical or pollition control device imbalandes, whici
result in-excess emissions.

b:  Shitdown is the cessation of the:operation of an emissiciis tinit for-any putpose,

6. Malfunetion is defined as any unavoidable mechanical and/or electrical failure of
air piollution control gquipment or process equipment-or of w process.resulting i
opération in an-abnormal or unusual mannet.

[Rule 62-210,200(159), (230), and (245), FAC.)

B.3.  :Applicable Regulations. The facility is subject to the following regulations: Florida Administrative Code
Chapters 62-4; 62-1 03’_;_-62-204;-_6}2_]0; 62-2172,62:213,63-214, 62-296, and 62-297, Tssuance of this
permit does not relieve the facility owner or operator from compliance with any-applicable federal, state, or
local permitting requirements or regulations:

[Rule:62-210.300, F.A.C.]

Bi4.  General Conditions. The owner and operator is subject to and shall operate under the General Permit-
Conditions | through 15 of this permit. General Permit Conditions are binding and enforceable pursuant to
Chapter403 of the Florida Statutes.

[Rule62-4.160, F.A.C.]

B, The modification-authorized by this construction peimit shall reasonably conform 1o the plans and schedule
submitted in the application. 1f thé permittée is unable fo complete construction -on schedule, the
Deépartment must be notified in'writing sixty (60) days prior to the expitation of the eonstruction permit: A
new schedule:and request for an extension of the constiuction permit shall be submitted.

[Rule 62-4:080(2); FAC.]
B.6.  Construction Permit Required. Unless exempt from permitting pursuant to Rule 62-210.300(3)(a).or (b),

F.A.C.,or Rule 62-4.040, F.A.C., an air construction permii shall be obtained by the owner or operator of
any proposed new, reconstructed, or modified facility oremissions unit, or any new poilution control.







PERMITTEE:

.

1.0 Nurn 'E')_az':. [rh0ns

Georgia-Pacific Corporation : Permit/Cert Number:  1070005:036-AC

- Post Office Box 919 ' Dite o Issie: © October 11, 2006

- Palatka, Flosida 32178-0919 ' Expiration Date: “Octaber 11,2007
' : County? - - Pritiany

equipient” prior to the beginning of sonstruction, reconstriction pursuant to CFR 60.13 6r 63.2, 0f
modification of the Tacility or emissions unit'or addition of the alr polhution control équipment; ofto

“establish a PAL: i accordaiice with all applicable provisions of Chapter 62-210, F.A.C., Chapter 62:212,.

FAL, and Chapter 62-4, F.AC.

! Applicable to-anew or replacement ESP for'this-emissions unit:

[Riile 62:210.300(1Y(a), F.AC]

AlUreports, fests, notifications or other subinittals required by this permit shall be submitted 6 the:

Dyepartment of Environmenial Protection

“Wortheast District — Alr Progran

7825 Baysicadows Way, Suite B200
Tacksonville, Florida 32256

“Telephone: 904/807-3300
© Fax: 904/448.4366

. dnitial compliance with the conditions of the-construction permit. Subsequent o construction and

demonstration of compliance with the vonditions of the construction permit; the owneror operator of shall
obtain an itial airoperation permit inaccordance with all applicable provisions of Chapter 62-210,
Chapter 62-213, and Chapter 624, The pennittes shatl submit-anapplication Tor 4 Titlé 'V Permit Revisicn
at Tedst 90 days prior to the expiration date of this permit but, o later than 180 days after the ESP

| comimeices operation as modified.

TRules 62-4.210, 62-210.300(1}(a): 62-210.300(2); and 62-213.420( 1 Ya)4., F-AC]
Executed in Jacksoiiville, Florida.

'STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT
. OF BNVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Christopher L, Kits, P.B.
‘Digteier Air Program Admibiator

“Other 11,2006

el B









| Amps | kVA

7) Both utilize BHA SQ300 Controls for the Rappers and T/R Sets.

8) There are a few subtle differences that overall should not impact dust removal performance. These
differences are in the style of electrodes and plates in various fields. | can get more details on this
if needed.

Also attached is a section of the original Research Cottrell manual with details about both precipitator units.

This is not intended to represent the application; just preliminary information as requested. Additional
information will be forwarded as available.

Best regards,

Ron Reynolds
Office 386-329-0967
Cell 386-916-3133

From: Linero, Alvaro [mailto:Alvaro.Linero@dep.state.fl.us]
Sent: Wednesday, December 05, 2012 5:59 PM

To: Reynolds, Ron E.
Cc: Pell, Leigh; Arif, Syed
Subject: RE: Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations LLC, Palatka Mill, Facility ID 1070005

Ron:

| think 14 days is sufficient, but 30-day is best because the project we are changing was a PSD
project.

If you find yourself in a squeeze, we can do the 14 days. Maybe your corporate people will
have an opinion.

In either case, a good summary will allow us to act promptly and make your February outage
target.

Start sending us a few pictures (of damaged and mothballed ESP's) and we can start write-up.
Al Linero.

A.A. Linero, P.E.

Florida Department of Environmental Protection
Division of Air Resource Management

Office of Permitting and Compliance
1-850-717-9076

Please take a few minutes to share your comments on the service you received from the department by clicking on
this link DEP_Customer Survey.

From: Reynolds, Ron E. [Ron.Reynolds@GAPAC.com]

Sent: Wednesday, December 05, 2012 5:29 PM

To: Linero, Alvaro; Arif, Syed

Cc: Ruppel, Mark S.; Eckenrode, Jim P.; Pell, Leigh; Tingle, Scott D.; McQuaig, Mary M.



mailto:Alvaro.Linero@dep.state.fl.us
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Subject: Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations LLC, Palatka Mill, Facility ID 1070005

Al and Syed,

Thank you for discussing with me today our plans regarding the No. 4 Combination Boiler (EU 016)
precipitator. As we discussed, the precipitator was damaged in a fire in early November, and bark burning is
currently curtailed. | had previously discussed this with Al and Leigh when we were considering rebuild of the
No. 4 CB precipitator in the first quarter. Now, we are considering instead the possibility of utilizing the former
No. 5 Power Boiler (EU 015) electrostatic precipitator which was taken out of service in 2008 when the No. 5
PB was converted to gas. This unit is similar in size and design to the No. 4 CB unit and is located right next to
the CB unit. We propose to make the necessary modifications to tie-in the No. 5 PB precipitator at the exit of
the he CB dust collector. Of course, the precipitator will be fully inspected and prepped for duty. The current
thinking is that this work would be completed in February, if the necessary approvals can be obtained.

Our permitting strategy will be to request a modification of the construction permit 066-AC/070-AC, which is
the permit for the No. 4 CB authorizing replacement of oil with natural gas auxiliary fuel, electric ID fan, dust
collector modification, and replacement of tubes in the air preheater. The latter was approved in 070-AC
which extended the expiration date to 1/1/2014. You suggested a shortened application form (the first four
pages) with sufficient details regarding the No. 5 precipitator to demonstrate that it is similar in design and
efficiency to the No. 4 CB unit, before it was damaged.

We will get the application package in your hands as soon as practicable, understanding that you will require
time to review and issue the draft permit. Will this require the 14-day public notice?

Best regards,

Ron

Ron Reynolds

Senior Environmental Engineer - Air
GP, Palatka Operations

Palatka, FL 32178-0919

Office 386-329-0967

Cell 386-916-3133






From: Arif, Syed

To: Scearce, Lynn

Cc: Read, David; Linero, Alvaro

Subject: FW: Georgia-Pacific, ID 1070005, No. 4 Combination Boiler Precipitator Project, PE certification
Date: Tuesday, December 18, 2012 2:03:39 PM

Attachments: 20121218130655741.pdf

Lynn,

The signed PE page has been submitted. The application came in on Friday.
Syed

----- Original Message-----

From: Reynolds, Ron E. [mailto:Ron.Reynolds@GAPAC.com]

Sent: Tuesday, December 18, 2012 1:43 PM

To: Arif, Syed

Cc: Linero, Alvaro; McQuaig, Mary M.

Subject: FW: Georgia-Pacific, ID 1070005, No. 4 Combination Boiler Precipitator Project, PE certification

Attached is the signed PE certification page. One original and three copies of the full application with PE
certification pages will be forwarded by overnight mail.

Contact me if you have any questions.

Ron Reynolds

Senior Environmental Engineer - Air
GP, Palatka Operations

Palatka, FL 32178-0919

Office 386-329-0967

Cell 386-916-3133
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2012 ESP Project Palatka
APPLICATION INFORMATION

Professional Engineer Ceriification

I. Professional Engineer Name: Mark J. Aguilar
Registration Number: §2248

2. Professional Engincer Mailing Address
Organization/Firm: Georgia-Pacific L1.G

Street Address: 133 Peachiree Street, NLE.

City: Atlanta State: Georgia Zip Code: 30303
3. Professional Engineer Telephone Numbers...
Telephone: (404) 652-4293 ext. Fax: (404) 654-4706

4. Professional Engineer E-mail Address: mjaguila@gapac.com

5. Professional Engineer Statement:
I, the undersigned, hereby certify, except as particularly noted hevein®, that:
(1) To the best of my knowledge, there is reasonable assurance that the air pollutant emissioins
wnit(s) and the air pollution control equipment described in this application Jfor air perniif, when
properly operated and maintained, will comply with all applicable standerds for control of air
pollutant emissions found in the Florida Statuies and rules of the Department of Environmental
Protection; and

(2) To the best of my knowledge, any emission estimates reported or relied on in this application
are true, accurate, and complete and are either based upon reasonable techniques available for
caleulating entissions or, for emission estimafes of hazardous air pollutanis not regulated for an
emissions wnif addressed in this application, based solely upon the materials, information and
calculations submitted with this application.

(3) If the purpose of this application is to obtain a Title V air operation perniit (check here {1, if
so), 1 further certify thai each entissions unit described in this application for air permit, when
properly operated and maintained, will comply with the applicable requirements identified in this
application to which the unil is subject, except those emissions units Jor which a compliance plan
and schedule is submitted with this application.

(4) If the purpose of this application is (o obtain an air construction perniif (check here I, if so)
or concurrently process and obtain an air construction perinit and a Title V air operation permit
revision or renewal for one or more proposed new or modified emissions unils (check here 1, if
s0), 1furither certify that the engineering features of each such emissions unit described in this
application have been designed or examined by me or individuals under my direct supervision and
Jound to be in conformity with sound engineering principles applicable to the control of emissions
of the air pollutants characterized in this application.

(5} If the prrpose of this application is to oblain an initial air operation perinit or operation permit
revision or renewal for one or more newly constructed or modified emissions units (check here L1,
if s0), 1further certify that, with the exception of any changes detailed as part of this application,
each such emissions wiil has been constructed or modified in substantial accordance with the
information given in the corresponding application for air construction perimit and with all

provisigns cont dined in such pergit.

AN Lt I 102012
Signature \ Date
(seal)

DEP Form No. 62-2 10900(]) - Form CADacuents and ScilingsirereynalLocal Settingsélemporary Intemel FilesiContent OutlaokASFY20SNGLong Form docx

Effective: 03/1 1/2010 6 12/2012











From: Arif, Syed

To: Scearce, Lynn

Cc: Koerner, Jeff; Linero. Alvaro; Read. David
Subject: Georgia Pacific - Palatka ESP Replacement

Date: Thursday, January 03, 2013 8:28:55 AM
Attachments: Draft 1070005-078-AC - Written Notice Signed.pdf

Draft 1070005-078-AC - Written Notice.docx
Draft 1070005-078-AC - Public Notice.doc
Draft 1070005-078-AC - TEPD.docx

Draft 1070005-078-AC- Permit.docx

Lynn — Attached are documents for a minor AC modification at the above referenced facility.
Please clerk and issue the project.

Jeff - This minor air construction permit revision will allow the replacement of the existing
damaged ESP for the No. 4 combination boiler with the ESP previously used for the No. 5 power
boiler at the Palatka Mill. The replacement is necessary because the original ESP was damaged by
fire in November 2012. The power boiler ESP is nearly identical in size, design and configuration to
the combination boiler ESP and should provide equivalent PM control efficiency. A 14-day
comment period on the public notice is required for this project.

Thanks,
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
Page 2 of 3







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
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WRITTEN NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT





WRITTEN NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT REVISION


Sent by Electronic Mail – Received Receipt Requested


Gary L. Frost, Vice President Operations


Georgia Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC


Post Office Box 919


Palatka, Florida 32178-0919


Re:	Project No. 1070005-078-AC


Georgia Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC, Palatka Mill


No. 4 Combination Boiler, Electrostatic Precipitator (ESP) Replacement


Dear Mr. Frost:


On December 19, 2012, you submitted a complete application requesting a permit revision to allow the replacement of the No. 4 combination boiler ESP with the ESP previously used for the No. 5 power boiler at the Palatka Mill.  The Palatka Mill is an existing facility located in Putnam County at 215 County Road 216 in Palatka, Florida.  Enclosed are the following documents:  the Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit; the Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit; the Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination; and the Draft Permit.  The Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit is the actual notice that you must have published in the legal advertisement section of a newspaper of general circulation in the area affected by this project.  If you have any questions, please contact the project engineer, David Read at 850/717-9075.


Sincerely,

















for	Jeffery F. Koerner, Program Administrator


Office of Permitting and Compliance


Division of Air Resource Management
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www.dep.state.fl.us


In the Matter of an


Application for Air Permit by:


			Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC


Post Office Box 919


Palatka, FL 32178-0919





Authorized Representative:


Gary L. Frost, Vice President Operations


			Project No. 1070005-078-AC


Minor Air Construction Permit Revision


Palatka Mill


No. 4 Combination Boiler


ESP Replacement 


Putnam County, Florida








Facility Location:  Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC operates the existing Palatka Mill, which is located in Putnam County at 215 County Road 216 in Palatka, Florida.


Project:  This project (Permit No. 1070005-078-AC) involves replacing the existing ESP used to control particulate matter (PM) emissions from the No. 4 combination boiler with an ESP previously used to control PM emission from the No. 5 power boiler.  Details of the project are provided in the application and the enclosed Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination.  


Permitting Authority:  Applications for air construction permits are subject to review in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 403, Florida Statutes (F.S.) and Chapters 62-4, 62-210 and 62-212 of the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.).  The proposed project is not exempt from air permitting requirements and is a revision of the previously issued permit No. 1070005-066-AC required to perform the proposed work.  The Office of Permitting and Compliance is the Permitting Authority responsible for making a permit determination for this project.  The Permitting Authority’s mailing address is:  2600 Blair Stone Road, MS #5505, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400.  The Permitting Authority’s telephone number is 850/717-9000.


Project File:  A complete project file is available for public inspection during the normal business hours of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday (except legal holidays), at address indicated above for the Permitting Authority.  The complete project file includes the Draft Permit, the Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination, the application, and the information submitted by the applicant, exclusive of confidential records under Section 403.111, F.S.  Interested persons may contact the Permitting Authority’s project review engineer for additional information at the address or phone number listed above.


Notice of Intent to Issue Permit:  The Permitting Authority gives notice of its intent to issue an air permit to the applicant for the project described above.  The applicant has provided reasonable assurance that operation of the proposed equipment will not adversely impact air quality and that the project will comply with all appropriate provisions of Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-296 and 62-297, F.A.C.  The Permitting Authority will issue a Final Permit in accordance with the conditions of the proposed Draft Permit unless a timely petition for an administrative hearing is filed under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S. or unless public comment received in accordance with this notice results in a different decision or a significant change of terms or conditions.


Public Notice:  Pursuant to Section 403.815, F.S. and Rules 62-110.106 and 62-210.350, F.A.C., you (the applicant) are required to publish at your own expense the enclosed Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit (Public Notice).  The Public Notice shall be published one time only as soon as possible in the legal advertisement section of a newspaper of general circulation in the area affected by this project.  The newspaper used must meet the requirements of Sections 50.011 and 50.031, F.S. in the county where the activity is to take place.  If you are uncertain that a newspaper meets these requirements, please contact the Permitting Authority at above address or phone number.  Pursuant to Rule 62-110.106(5) and (9), F.A.C., the applicant shall provide proof of publication to the Permitting Authority at the above address within 7 days of publication.  Failure to publish the notice and provide proof of publication may result in the denial of the permit pursuant to Rule 62-110.106(11), F.A.C.


Comments:  The Permitting Authority will accept written comments concerning the proposed Draft Permit for a period of 14 days from the date of publication of the Public Notice.  Written comments must be received by the Permitting Authority by close of business (5:00 p.m.) on or before the end of the 14-day period.  If written comments received result in a significant change to the Draft Permit, the Permitting Authority shall revise the Draft Permit and require, if applicable, another Public Notice.  All comments filed will be made available for public inspection.


Petitions:  A person whose substantial interests are affected by the proposed permitting decision may petition for an administrative hearing in accordance with Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S.  The petition must contain the information set forth below and must be filed with (received by) the Department’s Agency Clerk in the Office of General Counsel of the Department of Environmental Protection, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Mail Station #35, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000.  Petitions filed by the applicant or any of the parties listed below must be filed within 14 days of receipt of this Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit.  Petitions filed by any persons other than those entitled to written notice under Section 120.60(3), F.S., must be filed within 14 days of publication of the attached Public Notice or within 14 days of receipt of this Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit, whichever occurs first.  Under Section 120.60(3), F.S., however, any person who asked the Permitting Authority for notice of agency action may file a petition within 14 days of receipt of that notice, regardless of the date of publication.  A petitioner shall mail a copy of the petition to the applicant at the address indicated above, at the time of filing.  The failure of any person to file a petition within the appropriate time period shall constitute a waiver of that person’s right to request an administrative determination (hearing) under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S., or to intervene in this proceeding and participate as a party to it.  Any subsequent intervention (in a proceeding initiated by another party) will be only at the approval of the presiding officer upon the filing of a motion in compliance with Rule 28-106.205, F.A.C.


A petition that disputes the material facts on which the Permitting Authority’s action is based must contain the following information: (a) The name and address of each agency affected and each agency’s file or identification number, if known; (b) The name, address, and telephone number of the petitioner; the name, address and telephone number of the petitioner’s representative, if any, which shall be the address for service purposes during the course of the proceeding; and an explanation of how the petitioner’s substantial interests will be affected by the agency determination; (c) A statement of when and how each petitioner received notice of the agency action or proposed decision; (d) A statement of all disputed issues of material fact.  If there are none, the petition must so state; (e) A concise statement of the ultimate facts alleged, including the specific facts the petitioner contends warrant reversal or modification of the agency’s proposed action; (f) A statement of the specific rules or statutes the petitioner contends require reversal or modification of the agency’s proposed action including an explanation of how the alleged facts relate to the specific rules or statutes; and, (g) A statement of the relief sought by the petitioner, stating precisely the action the petitioner wishes the agency to take with respect to the agency’s proposed action.  A petition that does not dispute the material facts upon which the Permitting Authority’s action is based shall state that no such facts are in dispute and otherwise shall contain the same information as set forth above, as required by Rule 28-106.301, F.A.C.


Because the administrative hearing process is designed to formulate final agency action, the filing of a petition means that the Permitting Authority’s final action may be different from the position taken by it in this Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit.  Persons whose substantial interests will be affected by any such final decision of the Permitting Authority on the application have the right to petition to become a party to the proceeding, in accordance with the requirements set forth above.


Mediation:  Mediation is not available in this proceeding.























Executed in Tallahassee, Florida

















for	Jeffery F. Koerner, Program Administrator


Office of Permitting and Compliance


Division of Air Resource Management








CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE


The undersigned duly designated deputy agency clerk hereby certifies that this Final Air Permit package (including the Final Determination and Final Permit) was sent by electronic mail, or a link to these documents made available electronically on a publicly accessible server, with received receipt requested before the close of business on the date indicated below to the following persons.


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


FILING AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT FILED, on this date, pursuant to Section 120.52(7), Florida Statutes, with the designated agency clerk, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged.
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Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit REVISION


Florida Department of Environmental Protection



Division of Air Resource Management, Office of Permitting and Compliance


Draft Air Construction Permit Revision


Project No. 1070005-078-AC


Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC, Palatka Mill


Putnam County, Florida


Applicant:  The applicant for this project is Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC.  The applicant’s authorized representative and mailing address is:  Gary L. Frost, Vice President Operations, Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC, Palatka Mill, P.O. Box 919, Palatka, Florida 32178-0919.


Facility Location:  Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC operates the existing Palatka Mill, which is located in Putnam County at 215 County Road 216 in Palatka, Florida.


Project:  This permit will revise Permit Nos. 1070005-066-AC and 1070005-070-AC for the No. 4 combination boiler.  Permit No. 1070005-066-AC authorized the applicant to perform the following modifications to the No. 4 combination boiler:  replace the fuel oil burners with natural gas burners; upgrade of the existing mechanical dust collection system; and replace 28 continuous tube sections in the No. 4 combination boiler superheater section.  Permit No. 1070005-070-AC authorized the replacement of approximately 1,400 air preheater tubes out of a total of 2,320 tubes in the No. 4 Combination Boiler.  Approximately 400 tubes required prompt replacement due to corrosion or ash buildup, while approximately 1,000 tubes were replaced to minimize future failures and plugging.  



This project (Permit No. 1070005-078-AC) involves replacing the existing ESP used to control particulate matter (PM) emissions from the No. 4 combination boiler with an ESP previously used to control PM emission from the No. 5 power boiler.  The ESP for the No. 5 power boiler is no longer used since the boiler was converted to natural gas firing.  The replacement is necessary, because the original ESP was damaged by fire in November 2012.  According to the applicant, the power boiler ESP is nearly identical in size, design and configuration to the original ESP and should provide equivalent PM control efficiency resulting in no increase in PM emissions from the boiler.  The Department concurs with this conclusion but will require PM emissions stack testing and recordkeeping to verify that PM emissions will not increase as a result of this project.


Permitting Authority:  Applications for air construction permits are subject to review in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 403, Florida Statutes (F.S.) and Chapters 62-4, 62-210 and 62-212 of the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.).  The proposed project is not exempt from air permitting requirements and an air permit modification of Permit No. 1070005-066-AC is required to perform the proposed work.  The Permitting Authority responsible for making a permit determination for this project is the Office of Permitting and Compliance in the Department of Environmental Protection’s Division of Air Resource Management.  The Permitting Authority’s mailing address is:  2600 Blair Stone Road, MS #5505, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400.  The Permitting Authority’s telephone number is 850/717-9000.



Project File:  A complete project file is available for public inspection during the normal business hours of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday (except legal holidays), at the physical address indicated above for the Permitting Authority.  The complete project file includes the Draft Permit, the Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination, the application and information submitted by the applicant (exclusive of confidential records under Section 403.111, F.S.).  Interested persons may contact the Permitting Authority’s project engineer for additional information at the address and phone number listed above.  In addition, electronic copies of these documents are available on the following web site by entering draft permit number:  http://www.dep.state.fl.us/air/emission/apds/default.asp.


Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit:  The Permitting Authority gives notice of its intent to issue an air construction permit to the applicant for the project described above.  The applicant has provided reasonable assurance that operation of proposed equipment will not adversely impact air quality and that the project will comply with all appropriate provisions of Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-296 and 62-297, F.A.C.  The Permitting Authority will issue a Final Permit in accordance with the conditions of the proposed Draft Permit unless a timely petition for an administrative hearing is filed under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S. or unless public comment received in accordance with this notice results in a different decision or a significant change of terms or conditions.


Comments:  The Permitting Authority will accept written comments concerning the proposed Draft Permit for a period of 14 days from the date of publication of this Public Notice.  Written comments must be received by the Permitting Authority by close of business (5:00 p.m.) on or before the end of the 14-day period.  If written comments received result in a significant change to the Draft Permit, the Permitting Authority shall revise the Draft Permit and require, if applicable, another Public Notice.  All comments filed will be made available for public inspection.


Petitions:  A person whose substantial interests are affected by the proposed permitting decision may petition for an administrative hearing in accordance with Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S.  The petition must contain the information set forth below and must be filed with (received by) the Department’s Agency Clerk in the Office of General Counsel of the Department of Environmental Protection at 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Mail Station #35, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000.  Petitions filed by any persons other than those entitled to written notice under Section 120.60(3), F.S. must be filed within 14 days of publication of this Public Notice or receipt of a written notice, whichever occurs first.  Under Section 120.60(3), F.S., however, any person who asked the Permitting Authority for notice of agency action may file a petition within 14 days of receipt of that notice, regardless of the date of publication.  A petitioner shall mail a copy of the petition to the applicant at the address indicated above, at the time of filing.  The failure of any person to file a petition within the appropriate time period shall constitute a waiver of that person’s right to request an administrative determination (hearing) under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S., or to intervene in this proceeding and participate as a party to it.  Any subsequent intervention (in a proceeding initiated by another party) will be only at the approval of the presiding officer upon the filing of a motion in compliance with Rule 28-106.205, F.A.C.



A petition that disputes the material facts on which the Permitting Authority’s action is based must contain the following information: (a) The name and address of each agency affected and each agency’s file or identification number, if known; (b) The name, address and telephone number of the petitioner; the name address and telephone number of the petitioner’s representative, if any, which shall be the address for service purposes during the course of the proceeding; and an explanation of how the petitioner’s substantial rights will be affected by the agency determination; (c) A statement of when and how the petitioner received notice of the agency action or proposed decision; (d) A statement of all disputed issues of material fact.  If there are none, the petition must so state; (e) A concise statement of the ultimate facts alleged, including the specific facts the petitioner contends warrant reversal or modification of the agency’s proposed action; (f) A statement of the specific rules or statutes the petitioner contends require reversal or modification of the agency’s proposed action including an explanation of how the alleged facts relate to the specific rules or statutes; and, (g) A statement of the relief sought by the petitioner, stating precisely the action the petitioner wishes the agency to take with respect to the agency’s proposed action.  A petition that does not dispute the material facts upon which the Permitting Authority’s action is based shall state that no such facts are in dispute and otherwise shall contain the same information as set forth above, as required by Rule 28-106.301, F.A.C.



Because the administrative hearing process is designed to formulate final agency action, the filing of a petition means that the Permitting Authority’s final action may be different from the position taken by it in this Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit.  Persons whose substantial interests will be affected by any such final decision of the Permitting Authority on the application have the right to petition to become a party to the proceeding, in accordance with the requirements set forth above.



Mediation:  Mediation is not available for this proceeding.



(Public Notice to be Published in the Newspaper)
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TECHNICAL EVALUATION


&


PRELIMINARY DETERMINATION


APPLICANT


Georgia Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC


Post Office Box 919


Palatka, FL 32178-0919


Palatka Mill


Facility ID No. 1070005


PROJECT


Project No. 1070005-078-AC


Application for Minor Source Air Construction Permit


No. 4 Combination Boiler, Electrostatic Precipitator Replacement 


COUNTY


Putnam County, Florida


PERMITTING AUTHORITY


Florida Department of Environmental Protection


Division of Air Resource Management


Office of Permitting and Compliance


2600 Blair Stone Road, MS#5505


Tallahassee, Florida  32399-2400


January 3, 2013





1. GENERAL PROJECT INFORMATION


1.1. Air Pollution Regulations


Projects at stationary sources with the potential to emit air pollution are subject to the applicable environmental laws specified in Section 403 of the Florida Statutes (F.S.).  The statutes authorize the Department of Environmental Protection (Department) to establish regulations regarding air quality as part of the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), which includes the following applicable chapters:  62-4 (Permits); 62-204 (Air Pollution Control – General Provisions); 62-210 (Stationary Sources – General Requirements); 62-212 (Stationary Sources – Preconstruction Review); 62-213 (Operation Permits for Major Sources of Air Pollution); 62-296 (Stationary Sources - Emission Standards); and 62-297 (Stationary Sources – Emissions Monitoring).  Specifically, air construction permits are required pursuant to Rules 62-4, 62-210 and 62-212, F.A.C.


In addition, the U. S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) establishes air quality regulations in Title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR).  Part 60 specifies New Source Performance Standards (NSPS) for numerous industrial categories.  Part 61 specifies National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP) based on specific pollutants.  Part 63 specifies NESHAP based on the Maximum Achievable Control Technology (MACT) for numerous industrial categories.  The Department adopts these federal regulations on a quarterly basis in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.


1.2. Facility Description and Location


The Palatka Mill is an existing Kraft pulp and paper mill, which is categorized under Standard Industrial Classification Code No. 2611.  The existing Palatka Mill is located in Putnam County at 215 County Road 216 in Palatka, Florida.  The UTM coordinates of the existing facility are Zone 17, 434.00 kilometers (km) East and 3,283.4 km North.  This site is in an area that is in attainment (or designated as unclassifiable) for all air pollutants subject to state and federal Ambient Air Quality Standards (AAQS).


1.3. Facility Regulatory Categories


· The facility is a major source of hazardous air pollutants (HAP).


· The facility does not operate units subject to the acid rain provisions of the Clean Air Act.


· The facility is a Title V major source of air pollution in accordance with Chapter 213, F.A.C.


· The facility is a major stationary source in accordance with Rule 62-212.400, F.A.C. for the Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) of Air Quality.


1.4. Project Description


This project involves the revision of existing Air Construction Permit Nos. 1070005-066-AC and 1070005-070-AC for the No. 4 combination boiler at the Palatka Mill.  The No. 4 combination boiler is emission unit 016 (EU 016) at the facility.  Permit No. 1070005-066-AC authorized the applicant to perform the following modifications to the No. 4 combination boiler:  replace the fuel oil burners with natural gas burners; upgrade of the existing mechanical dust collection system; and replace 28 continuous tube sections in the No. 4 combination boiler superheater section.  Permit No. 1070005-070-AC authorized the replacement of approximately 1,400 air preheater tubes out of a total of 2,320 tubes in the No. 4 Combination Boiler.  Approximately 400 tubes required prompt replacement due to corrosion or ash buildup, while approximately 1,000 tubes were replaced to minimize future failures and plugging.  


This project (Permit No. 1070005-078-AC) involves replacing the current ESP used to control particulate matter (PM) emissions from the No. 4 combination boiler with an ESP previously used to control PM emission from the No. 5 power boiler.  The ESP for the No. 5 power boiler is no longer used since the boiler was converted to natural gas firing.  The replacement is necessary, because the original ESP was damaged by fire in November 2012.  According to the applicant, the power boiler ESP is nearly identical in size, design and configuration to the original ESP and should provide equivalent PM control efficiency.  In addition, this project incorporates a permit exemption letter dated December 12, 2012, wherein the Department granted the permittee the authority to plug off 14 dust collector tubes in the No 4 Combination Boiler dust collection system.  After plugging these tubes, 34 active tubes will remain in the dust collection system.  The result of plugging the tubes will be an increase in flue gas velocity through the dust collection system (cyclones), which should increase the efficiency of the mechanical dust collection system.  This work is also included in this permitting action for completeness even through no permit is required to conduct the work


1.5. Processing Schedule


· December 19, 2012:	Received complete application for a minor source air pollution construction permit.


· January 3, 2013:	Issued draft permit package.


2. PSD APPLICABILITY


2.1. General PSD Applicability


The Department regulates major stationary sources in accordance with Florida’s PSD program pursuant to Rule 62-212.400, F.A.C.  PSD preconstruction review is required in areas that are currently in attainment with the state and federal ambient air quality standards (AAQS) or areas designated as “unclassifiable” for these regulated pollutants.  Commonly addressed PSD pollutants for Kraft pulp mills such as the Palatka Mill include: carbon monoxide (CO), nitrogen oxide (NOX), PM, PM with a mean diameter of 10 microns or less (PM10), PM with a mean diameter of 2.5 microns or less (PM2.5), sulfur dioxide (SO2), volatile organic compounds (VOC) and sulfuric acid mist (SAM).  


Additional PSD pollutants that are more common to certain other industries include: lead (Pb), mercury (Hg), hydrogen sulfide (H2S), TRS including H2S, reduced sulfur compounds (RSC) including H2S, municipal waste combustor (MWC) organics measured as total tetra- through octa-chlorinated dibenzo-p-dioxins and dibenzofurans (dioxin/furan), MWC metals measured as PM; MWC acid gases measured as SO2 and HCl, and municipal solid waste (MSW) landfill emissions as non-methane organic compounds (NMOC).  


As defined in Rule 62-210.200(Definitions), F.A.C., a stationary source is a “major stationary source” (major PSD source) if it emits or has the potential to emit (PTE):


· 250 tons per year (tons/year) or more of any PSD pollutant; or 


· 100 tons/year or more of any PSD pollutant and the facility belongs to one of the 28 listed PSD major facility categories.


The list given in the citation includes the category of “Kraft pulp mills”.  The given category applies to the facility before and after the proposed project.  The Palatka Mill is a major stationary source based on actual emissions of and potential to emit 100 tons/year or more of several individual PSD pollutants.  


For major stationary sources such as the Palatka Mill, PSD applicability for modification projects is based on thresholds known as the significant emission rates (SER) as defined in Rule 62-210.200(Definitions), F.A.C.  Any “net emissions increase” as defined in Rule 62-210.200(Definitions), F.A.C. of a PSD pollutant from the project that equals or exceeds the respective SER is considered “significant”.  SER also means any emissions rate or any net emissions increase of a PSD pollutant associated with a major stationary source or major modification which would construct within 10 km of a Class I area and have an impact on such area equal to or greater than 1 gram per cubic meter, 24-hour average.  


Although a facility may be “major” (i.e. emits or has the potential to emit 100 or 250 TPY as applicable) for only one PSD pollutant, a project must include BACT controls for any PSD pollutant that exceeds the corresponding significant emission rates given in the Table 1 below.


[bookmark: _Ref344887586]Table 1 - List of SER by PSD-Pollutant. 1, 3


			Pollutant


			SER (TPY)


			Pollutant


			SER (TPY)





			CO


			100


			NOX


			40





			PM/PM10/PM2.5


			25/15/10


			Ozone (VOC) 2


			40





			PM2.5 (NOX)


			40


			PM2.5 (SO2)


			40





			Ozone (NOX) 2


			40


			SAM


			7





			SO2


			40


			Pb


			0.6





			Hg


			0.1 


			GHG (CO2e)


			75,000 3





			1. Excluding fluoride and those pollutants defined for Pulp and Paper, MWC, MSW landfills.


1. Ozone (O3) is regulated by its precursors (VOC and NOX).  PSD for PM2.5 can be triggered by its precursors (NOX and SO2).


1. Federal SER of 75,000 TPY for GHG (as CO2e) for PSD sources and has not been incorporated into Department rules. 








According to 40 CFR 52.21, six greenhouse gases (GHG), are also be subject to regulation at new stationary sources that will emit or have the potential to emit 100,000 tons/year (SER equal to 75,000 tons/year) expressed as the carbon dioxide equivalent emissions (CO2e).  This requirement has not been incorporated into Department rules but is a separate requirement of the EPA.  


2.2. PSD Applicability for Project


The project is located in Putnam County which is in an area that is currently in attainment with the AAQS or is otherwise designated as unclassifiable.  According to the applicant, the proposed project will not increase emissions for any PSD pollutant; therefore, the project is not subject to a PSD preconstruction review.


3. DEPARTMENT REVIEW


The No. 4 combination boiler that operates at the Palatka Mill is permitted to burn wood/bark and natural gas. ` Modifications to this boiler were authorized to be performed by the final Air Construction Permit Nos. 1070005-066-AC and 1070005-070-AC that were issued on April, 7, 2011 and January 11, 2012, respectively.  These permitted modifications include the following changes or improvements: 


· Replace the fuel oil burners with natural gas burners;


· Upgrade of the existing mechanical dust collection system; 


· Replace the existing steam induced draft fan-drive with an electric motor; 


· Partially replace 28 continuous superheater tube sections; and


· Replace approximately 1,400 tubes in the boiler air preheater section.


The applicant is proposing to replace the existing damaged ESP on the No. 4 combination boiler with an ESP previously used to control PM emission from the No. 5 power boiler.  The applicant submitted specification sheets comparing the No. 5 power boiler ESP to the No. 4 combination boiler ESP to show that they have very similar characteristics and should provide the same level of PM emissions control.  In addition, the applicant sent an email to the Department dated December 10, 2012 comparing the characteristics of the two ESP.  The information from this email is summarized below.  


1. The two precipitator chambers are identical (size, structure, etc.)


1. The main difference between the two precipitators originally was that the Power Boiler inlet field was empty; an inlet field was added to the PB unit in 2007 under permit 1070005-036-AC issued October 11, 2006.


1. Both Precipitators have (3) Fields, all of them have (21) collecting plates, (20) gas passages with 12” spacing


2. The collecting plates are 41’ high and 11’2” wide.


1. Each field has (120) electrodes, (6) in each gas passage.


1. Each Precipitator has (49) Rappers


4. (12) collecting plate rappers per field


4. (3) discharge electrode rappers per field


4. (2) inlet and (2) outlet distribution plate rappers


1. The fields are individually energized by five (6) transformer/rectifier (T/R) sets (three per Precipitator).  Each T/R is connected full wave through a single output bushing.  The power supply is 480 volts, 60 Hz, 3 Phase. 


5. T/R Set Ratings


			Primary Volts AC


			Primary Amps AC


			Secondary
Volts DC


			Secondary
Amps DC


			KVA





			480 V


			84 Amps


			55 kV


			500 mA


			38.6 kVA








1. Both utilize BHA SQ300 Controls for the Rappers and T/R Sets.


1. There are a few subtle differences that overall should not impact dust removal performance.  These differences are in the style of electrodes and plates in various fields.


Based on the Departments review of these specifications and correspondence, it has reasonable assurance that PM emissions will not increase as a result of this project.  The Department will require that a PM emissions rate stack test be conducted within 90 days of replacement ESP becoming operational on the No. 4 combination boiler to verify that the permitted PM emission rates contained in the current Title V Air Operation permit No. 1070005-074-AV are not exceeded.  The test methods and conditions specified in the Title V permit shall be utilized for this stack testing.  Results shall be reported to the Compliance Authority with 30 days of the completion of the stack testing.  In addition, the Department will require that the applicant submit annual reports for five years to verify PM emission rates.  


4. PRELIMINARY DETERMINATION


The Department makes a preliminary determination that the proposed project will comply with all applicable state and federal air pollution regulations as conditioned by the draft permit.  David Read is the project engineer responsible for reviewing the application and drafting the permit.  Additional details of this analysis may be obtained by contacting Mr. Read at 850-717-9075, by email at david.read@dep.state.fl.us or by mail at the Department’s Office of Permitting and Compliance at Mail Station #5505, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida  32399-2400.
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SECTION 2.  PERMIT REVISIONS





PERMITTEE


			Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC


Post Office Box 919


Palatka, FL 32178-0919


Authorized Representative:


Gary L. Frost, Vice President Operations


			Air Permit No. 1070005-078-AC


Permit Expires:  January 1, 2015


Minor Air Construction Permit Revision


Palatka Mill


No. 4 Combination Boiler Electrostatic


Precipitator (ESP) Replacement








Project


This is the final air construction permit, which revises Permit Nos. 1070005-066-AC and 1070005-070-AC to allow the replacement of the ESP for No. 4 Combination Boiler.  The proposed work will be conducted at the existing Palatka Mill, which is a Kraft pulp and paper mill categorized under Standard Industrial Classification No. 2611.  The existing facility is located in Putnam County at 215 County Road 216 in Palatka, Florida.  The UTM coordinates are Zone 17, 434.00 kilometer (km) East and 3,283.4 km North.  


This final permit is organized into the following sections:  Section 1 (General Information) and Section 2 (Permit Revisions).  As noted in the Final Determination provided with this final permit, only minor changes and clarifications were made to the draft permit.


STATEMENT OF BASIS


This air pollution construction permit is issued under the provisions of:  Chapter 403 of the Florida Statutes (F.S.) and Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-296 and 62-297 of the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.).  The permittee is authorized to conduct the proposed work in accordance with the conditions of this permit.  This project is subject to the general preconstruction review requirements in Rule 62-212.300, F.A.C. and is not subject to the preconstruction review requirements for major stationary sources in Rule 62-212.400, F.A.C. for the Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) of Air Quality.


Upon issuance of this final permit, any party to this order has the right to seek judicial review of it under Section 120.68 of the Florida Statutes by filing a notice of appeal under Rule 9.110 of the Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure with the clerk of the Department of Environmental Protection in the Office of General Counsel (Mail Station #35, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida, 32399-3000) and by filing a copy of the notice of appeal accompanied by the applicable filing fees with the appropriate District Court of Appeal.  The notice must be filed within 30 days after this order is filed with the clerk of the Department.


Executed in Tallahassee, Florida


Electronic Signature





(DRAFT)
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


Mr. Khalid AlNahdy, DEP Northeast District Office:  (khalid.alnahdy@dep.state.fl.us)


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
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FACILITY DESCRIPTION


The existing facility consists of the following emissions units (EU).  The EU affected by this permitting action is highlighted.


			Facility ID No. 1070005





			EU ID No.


			Emission Unit Description





			015


			No. 5 Power Boiler





			016 


			No. 4 Combination Boiler





			017 


			No. 4 Lime Kiln





			018


			No. 4 Recovery Boiler





			019


			No. 4 Smelt Dissolving Tanks (2)





			031


			Tall Oil Plant





			035


			ClO2 Plant and Methanol Storage Tank





			036


			ECF No. 3 Bleach Plant





			037 


			Thermal Oxidizer





			039


			Bark Hog





			044


			No. 7 Package Boiler





			045


			Wide-web Flexographic Printers





			046 


			Condensate Stripper System





			047


			Brown Stock Washing System- Lines 3,5,6,&7





			048


			Oxygen Delignification System





			050


			Converting Department








FACILITY REGULATORY CLASSIFICATION


· The facility is a major source of hazardous air pollutants (HAP).


· The facility does not operate units subject to the acid rain provisions of the Clean Air Act (CAA).


· The facility is a Title V major source of air pollution in accordance with Chapter 213, F.A.C.


· The facility is a major stationary source in accordance with Rule 62-212.400, F.A.C. for the Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) of Air Quality.


· The proposed project does not trigger a PSD review and a requirement to conduct a Best Available Control Technology (BACT) pursuant to Department Rule 62-212.400, F.A.C.


PROPOSED PROJECT


This permit will revise Permit Nos. 1070005-066-AC and 1070005-070-AC for the No. 4 combination boiler.  Permit No. 1070005-066-AC authorized the applicant to perform the following modifications to the No. 4 combination boiler:  replace the fuel oil burners with natural gas burners; upgrade of the existing mechanical dust collection system; and replace 28 continuous tube sections in the No. 4 combination boiler superheater section.  Permit No. 1070005-070-AC authorized the replacement of approximately 1,400 air preheater tubes out of a total of 2,320 tubes in the No. 4 Combination Boiler.  Approximately 400 tubes required prompt replacement due to corrosion or ash buildup, while approximately 1,000 tubes were replaced to minimize future failures and plugging.  


This project (Permit No. 1070005-078-AC) involves replacing the existing ESP used to control particulate matter (PM) emissions from the No. 4 combination boiler with an ESP previously used to control PM emission from the No. 5 power boiler.  The ESP for the No. 5 power boiler is no longer used since the boiler was converted to natural gas firing.  The replacement is necessary, because the original ESP was damaged by fire in November 2012.  According to the applicant, the power boiler ESP is nearly identical in size, design and configuration to the original ESP and should provide equivalent PM control efficiency.


Finally, in a permit exemption letter dated December 12, 2012, the Department granted the permittee the authority to plug off 14 dust collector tubes in the No 4 Combination Boiler dust collection system.  After plugging these tubes, 34 active tubes will remain in the dust collection system.  The result of plugging the tubes will be an increase in flue gas velocity through the dust collection system (cyclones), which should increase the efficiency of the mechanical dust collection system.  This work is also included in this permitting action for completeness even through no permit is required to conduct the work.


(1) 


(1) 


SECTION 1.  GENERAL INFORMATION





The following permit conditions are revised as indicated.  Strikethrough is used to denote the deletion of text.  Double-underlines are used to denote the addition of text.  All changes are emphasized with yellow highlight.


Permit Being Modified:  Permit No. 1070005-066-AC


Affected Emissions Unit:  EU 016


Subsection 3A, Emission Standards:  This section is revised as follows.


EMISSIONS STANDARDS


5. Standards


a. Existing Standards:  The No. 4 Combination Boiler remains subject to all applicable requirements in the current Title V air operation permit.  No new emissions standards are imposed by this permit.  [Rules 62-4.070(3) and 62-210.300 and Chapter 62-213, F.A.C.]


b. New Standards:  Compliance stack testing to show that the PM emission limits specified in the current Title V air operation permit are met shall be completed within 90 days of the initial operation of the replacement ESP on the No. 4 combination boiler.  The test methods and conditions specified in the Title V permit shall be utilized.  Results shall be reported to the Compliance Authority with 30 days of the completion of the stack testing.  [Rules 62-4.070(3), F.A.C.]


Permit Being Modified:  Permit No. 1070005-070-AC


Affected Emissions Unit:  EU 016


Section II – Permit Revisions:  This condition is revised as follows.


2. Modifications :  The permittee shall make the following modifications and other related work to the No. 4 Combination Boiler:


a. Replace the three existing No. 6 residual oil burners with natural gas burners.  Natural gas shall replace No. 6 residual fuel oil as the supplemental fuel supply for No. 4 Combination Boiler.  Fuel oil will no longer be permitted after the burner replacement is complete.  


b. Upgrade the existing mechanical dust collection system.  The No. 3 tertiary collector shall be upgraded to become the primary dust collector prior to the electrostatic precipitator.  Plug off 14 dust collector tubes in the dust collection system leaving 34 active tubes in the dust collection system.  Plugging the tubes will increase in flue gas velocity through the dust collection system (cyclones) thereby increasing the collection efficiency.


c. Replace the existing steam turbine-driven on the induced draft (ID) fan for the No. 4 combination boiler with an electric motor ID fan.


d. Partially replace 28 continuous tube sections in the boiler’s superheater section.


e. Replace approximately 1,400 tubes in the boiler air preheater section.


f. Replace the existing ESP used to control PM emissions from the No. 4 combination boiler with the ESP previously used to control PM emission from the No. 5 power boiler.  To accomplish this task, the duct work shall be modified to redirect the flue gas from the No. 4 combination boiler from inlet of the damaged ESP to the inlet of the ESP that had previously been used to control PM emissions from the No. 5 power boiler.


{Permitting Note:  the ESP previously used to control PM emissions from the No. 5 power boiler is no longer in use because the No. 5 boiler was converted to fire only natural gas in a previous permitting action.}


[Applicant’s Request]
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From: Scearce, Lynn

To: AlNahdy. Khalid; ceron.heather@epa.gov; forney.kathleen@epa.gov; yan.huang@dnr.state.ga.us;
mpitrolo@fs.fed.us; catherine_collins@fws.gov; meredith_bond@fws.gov

Cc: Read, David; Friday, Barbara; Scearce. Lynn

Subject: New Application: 1070005-078-AC, Georgia Pacific, LLC, Palatka Pulp and Paper Mill

Date: Monday, December 31, 2012 1:13:38 PM

Attachments: image002.png

All:

A new Permit Application has been received at FL Department of Environmental Protection
Div. of Air Resource Management and is currently under review and can be viewed at

http://appprod.dep.state.fl.us/air/emission/apds/default.asp.

If you have any problems accessing these documents please let me know. The following
identifies your project number and permit application processor.

ARMS PA Project ID: 1070005-078-AC
Facility Name: Palatka Pulp and Paper Mill
Florida County: Putnam

Project Description:

Application for No. 4 Combination Boiler
Precipitator Replacement

Permit Application Processor: [David Read

Processor Phone: (850) 717-9075
Processor Email Address: David Read@dep.state.fl.us
Received in-house: 12/19/12

Lynn Scearce

AT
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
please visit us online at the following web address: wwuw.title5feeholiday.com

—
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Please take a few minutes to share your comments on the service you received from the department
by clicking on this link. DEP_Customer Survey.



http://survey.dep.state.fl.us/?refemail=Lynn.Scearce@dep.state.fl.us




From: EPOST_AIR_TAL@dep.state.fl.us

To: EPOST_AIR_TAL

Cc: PCOBB@GOLDER.COM; Read, David; EPOST_AIR_TAL

Subject: Project Name/Description/Facility County: AB143-NO. 4 BOILER / Application for No. 4 Combination Boiler
Precipitator Replacement / PUTNAM

Date: Wednesday, December 19, 2012 10:40:46 AM

Dear Applicant:

Thank you for your air pollution permit application for the referenced project. We encourage direct
communication with our permit processor to answer any questions that may come up during the review
process. You may be contacted by our processor by e-mail or by phone. Our goal is to reduce the
number of formal requests for additional information (RAIs), as well as the overall time to process your
application. We appreciate your efforts to assist us by ensuring that your response to any questions or
RAls is timely, thorough and complete.

Facility Name: PALATKA PULP & PAPER MILL

Project Description: Application for No. 4 Combination Boiler Precipitator Replacement
Application Project No: 1070005-078-AC

Application Received Date: 12/14/2012

Permit Processor: David Read

Processor Phone: 850-414-7268

Processor Email: david.read@dep.state.fl.us

The Department will help you navigate the permitting process and explain the permit application
requirements for your facility. You may schedule a meeting or teleconference with the permitting
processor as needed or simply send an email.

If you have any questions, or if you received this email in error, please contact the Permitting Processor.
Best Regards,

Florida Department of Environmental Protection
Division of Air Resource Management

2600 Blair Stone Road, MS. 5500

Tallahassee, FL 32399

Tel. 850-717-9000

Please do not reply to this auto-generated email.

Please take a few minutes to share your comments on the service you received from the department by
clicking on this link Copy the url below to a web browser to complete the DEP survey:
http://survey.dep.state.fl.us/?refemail=EPOST_AIR_TAL@dep.state.fl.us
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From: EPOST_AIR_TAL@dep.state.fl.us

To: EPOST_AIR_TAL

Cc: PCOBB@GOLDER.COM; Read, David; EPOST_AIR_TAL

Subject: Project Name/Description/Facility County: AP235-EXEMPTION ON DUST SYSTEM / Exemption request on the
dust collector system for the No. 4 combination boiler. / PUTNAM

Date: Monday, December 10, 2012 10:46:02 AM

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

Project Description: Exemption request on the dust collector system for the No. 4 combination boiler.
Application Project No: 1070005-077-AC

Application Received Date: 12/10/2012

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
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From: Reynolds. Ron E.

To: Scearce, Lynn; Frost, Gary (Florida)

Cc: ceron.heather@epa.gov; forney.kathleen@epa.gov; AlNahdy, Khalid; Read, David; Arif, Syed; Friday, Barbara;
McQuaig. Mary M.

Subject: RE: 1070005-078-AC, Georgia Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC, Palatka Mill, Draft Permit

Date: Thursday, January 03, 2013 9:53:19 AM

Dear Ms. Scearce,
Draft Permit documents have been received.
Many Thanks and Happy New Year!

Ron Reynolds
Office 386-329-0967
Cell 386-916-3133

From: Scearce, Lynn [mailto:Lynn.Scearce@dep.state.fl.us]

Sent: Thursday, January 03, 2013 8:58 AM

To: Frost, Gary (Florida)

Cc: Reynolds, Ron E.; ceron.heather@epa.gov; forney.kathleen@epa.gov; AlNahdy, Khalid; Read, David;
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
PERMIT?2K .dep.state.fl.us/adh/prod/pdf permit zip files/1070005.078.AC.D_pdf.zip

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

To: Read. David
Subject: RE: Georgia-Pacific LLC - Palatka: Facility ID 1070005 - No. 4 Combination Boiler Dust Collector
Date: Monday, December 10, 2012 10:48:42 AM
Georgia Pacific, | Exemption request on the
Exemption- No module X 8 P q
12/5/2012 1070005 needed David AP235 077-AC LLC, Palatka dust collector system for the
Facility No. 4 combination boiler.

From: Read, David

Sent: Monday, December 10, 2012 10:01 AM

To: Scearce, Lynn

Subject: FW: Georgia-Pacific LLC - Palatka: Facility ID 1070005 - No. 4 Combination Boiler Dust Collector

Lynn this needs a project number assigned to it. Syed will know when we actually received the request.
Thanks

David Read

From: Arif, Syed

Sent: Monday, December 10, 2012 8:32 AM

To: Read, David

Subject: FW: Georgia-Pacific LLC - Palatka: Facility ID 1070005 - No. 4 Combination Boiler Dust Collector

David,
Here’s the exemption request on the dust collector system for the No. 4 combination boiler.
Thanks for taking care of this request.

Syed

From: Reynolds, Ron E. [mailto:Ron.Reynolds@GAPAC.com]
Sent: Friday, December 07, 2012 12:43 PM

To: Arif, Syed
Cc: Linero, Alvaro; Ruppel, Mark S.; Galler, Wayne J.; McQuaig, Mary M.; Morris, Daniel L.; Francis, Keith T. (PAL); Pell, Leigh
Subject: Georgia-Pacific LLC - Palatka: Facility ID 1070005 - No. 4 Combination Boiler Dust Collector

Mr. Arif,

Please find letter attached. Hard copy will follow via certified mail.
Best regards,

Ron Reynolds

Office 386-329-0967
Cell 386-916-3133
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